
 
 

 
 
                                                        

AGENDA
 

For a meeting of the 
DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE 

to be held on 
TUESDAY, 6 DECEMBER 2005 

at 
2.00 PM 

in the 
COUNCIL CHAMBER, COUNCIL OFFICES, ST PETERS HILL, 

GRANTHAM 
Duncan Kerr, Chief Executive  

 
Committee 
Members: 

Councillor George Chivers, Councillor Brian Fines (Vice-Chairman), 
Councillor Bryan Helyar, Councillor Reginald Howard, Councillor Mrs 
Maureen Jalili, Councillor Albert Victor Kerr, Councillor Alan Parkin 
(Chairman), Councillor Stanley Pease, Councillor Mrs Angeline 
Percival, Councillor Norman Radley, Councillor Bob Sandall, 
Councillor Ian Stokes, Councillor Frank Turner, Councillor George 
Waterhouse, Councillor Mike Williams and Councillor Avril Williams 

  
Committee Support 
Officer: 

 
Malcolm Hall  Tel: 01476 406118 

  
 
Members of the Committee are invited to attend the above meeting 

to consider the items of business listed below. 
 

1. MEMBERSHIP  The Chief Executive to notify the Committee of any substitute 
members. 

  
2. APOLOGIES 
  
3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST: Members are asked to declare an interest in 

matters for consideration at the meeting. 
  
4. MINUTES OF MEETING HELD ON 15TH NOVEMBER 2005    (Enclosure) 
  
5. PRESENTATION ON HIGHWAY ISSUES BY A REPRESENTATIVE OF 

LINCOLNSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 
  
6. SECTION 106 AGREEMENT - ELSEA PARK BOURNE 
  

Oral report from the Head of Planning Policy and Economic Regeneration. 

 



  
7. ENFORCEMENT ACTION: 
  

(1) CANCER RESEARCH UK, 16 HIGH STREET, STAMFORD 
 
(2) THE NEW INN, 10 WEST STREET, FOLKINGHAM 
 
Report No PLA544 from the Development Control Services Manager  

 (Enclosure)
 
 
 

  
8. PLANNING MATTERS: 
 To consider applications received for the grant of planning permission – reports 

prepared by the Area Planning Officers. 
 
 
a)  Straightforward List      (Enclosure) 
b)  List for Debate       (Enclosure) 

  
9. INFORMATION RELATING TO DEVELOPMENT CONTROL AND OTHER 

PLANNING ACTIVITIES. 
  

Report No. PLA543 by the Development Control Services Manager 
(Enclosure)

  
 

EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 
 

It is anticipated that, in accordance with section 100a (4) of the Local Government Act 
1972, the public may be excluded from the meeting during consideration of the 
following item of business because of the likelihood that otherwise exempt information, 
as described in paragraph 12 of part 1 of schedule 12a of the Act would be disclosed to 
the public. 
 
10. ANY OTHER BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN, BY REASON OF SPECIAL 

CIRCUMSTANCES, DECIDES IS URGENT. 
  
11. PLANNING APPEAL:  SO5/0354/55 - ERECTION OF 5 BUNGALOWS, R/O 

FARBROOKE, MAIN ROAD, LONG BENNINGTON 
  

Oral report from the Development Control Services Manager. 
  
 



Development Control Committee/Minutes/15th November 2005 

MINUTES 
 

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE 
TUESDAY 15th NOVEMBER 2005  

 
2.00 PM 

 
 

COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT 
 
Councillor Chivers      Councillor N Radley 
Councillor Fines      Councillor Sandall  
Councillor Helyar      Councillor Selby 
Councillor Howard       Councillor Stokes 
Councillor Mrs Jalili      Councillor Turner 
Councillor Kerr       Councillor Waterhouse 
Councillor Parkin (In the Chair)    Councillor Mrs A Williams 
Councillor Pease      Councillor M G Williams 
Councillor Mrs Percival 
 
OFFICERS       OTHER MEMBERS 
 
Development Control Services Manger  Councillor Wilks 
Head of Planning Policy and Economic 
Regeneration 
Committee Support Officer 
Legal Executive 
 
 
616. DECLARATIONS ON INTEREST 
 
There were none declared. 
 
617. MINUTES 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 25th October 2005 were confirmed as a 
correct record of decisions taken. 
 
618. SECTION 106 AGREEMENT - SO5/1044/12 - RESIDENTIAL 

DEVELOPMENT, TRADITIONAL IRONWARE, CHERRY HOLT 
ROAD, BOURNE  

 
Decision:- 
 
That in the event of the planning appeal being allowed, to agree to a Section 
106 Agreement being entered into in respect of SO5/1044/12 – residential 

Agenda Item 4 



Development Control Committee/Minutes/15th November 2005 

development, Traditional Ironware, Cherry Holt Road, Bourne in respect of an 
education contribution and a contribution towards a local area play space with 
an ongoing maintenance agreement. 
 
The Legal Executive reported that the above application had been refused at 
a meeting of the Planning Panel.  The applicants had now appealed and the 
matter was to be determined at a hearing.  She asked that in the event of the 
appeal being allowed authority being given for a Section 106 Agreement to be 
entered into in respect of an education contribution and a local area play 
space and ongoing maintenance agreement.  It was proposed, seconded and 
agreed accordingly. 
 
619. PLANNING MATTERS – STRAIGHT FORWARD LIST  
 
Decision:- 
 
To determine applications, or make observations, as listed below:- 
  
SF.1 
 
Application ref: S05/1331/35  
 
Description:  Extension to provide customer reception centre 
 
Location:  Council Offices, St Peter's Hill, Grantham 
 
Decision:  Approved 
 
Subject to the following conditions 
 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the 
expiration of three years from the date of this permission. 

2. Before the development hereby permitted is commenced, final 
details of the materials to be used in the construction of external 
walls and roofs shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
District Planning Authority. Only such materials as may be agreed 
shall be used in the development.  

 
Note(s) to Applicant 

You are advised that the application site falls within an area which requires 
protection from Radon. You are advised to contact the District Council's 
Building Control Services to ascertain the level of protection required, and 
whether geological assessment is necessary. 

 
SF.2 
 
Application ref: S05/1353/12, 76  
 
Description:  Public house/restaurant and access road 
 

 



Development Control Committee/Minutes/15th November 2005 

Location:  Pt OS 2173, South Road (A15), Bourne 
 
Decision:  Approved 
 
Subject to the following conditions 
 

1. Application for approval of reserved matters must be made not later 
than the expiration of three years beginning with the date of this 
permission, and the development must be begun not later than 
whichever is the later of the following dates:  
(a) the expiration of five years from the date of this permission; or  
(b) the expiration of two years from the final approval of the 
reserved matters, or, in the case of approval on different dates, the 
final approval of the last such matter to be approved. 

2. The following matters are reserved for subsequent approval by the 
District Planning Authority and no development shall be carried out 
until these matters have been approved, viz. detailed drawings to a 
scale of not less than 1/100, showing the siting, design and external 
appearance of the building(s) including particulars of the materials 
to be used for external walls and roofs, the means of access and 
the landscaping of the site. 

3. Before any development is commenced the approval of the District 
Planning Authority is required to:-  
 
(i)   a *specification of the type of construction proposed for roads 
and/or footways; 
 
(ii)  a programme for the making up of the roads and/or footways; 
 
(iii) details of the method and means of disposal of highway surface 
water; 
 
(iv) detailed plans to a scale of 1/500 showing the layout of the 
roads and footways together with longitudinal sections to a scale of 
1/500 horizontal and not less than 1/100 vertical showing the 
gradients of carriageways and full details of surface water drainage 
proposals. (Cross sections taken at not more than 30 metre 
intervals normal to the proposed carriageway plotted to a scale of 
1/100 natural will also be required where the adjoining ground levels 
will vary 0.5 metres plus from the proposed finished footway levels 
of the estate road);  
 
(v)  details of all proposed services showing the location within the 
highway in accordance with the Provision of Mains and Services by 
Public Utilities on Residential Estates published by the National 
Joint Utilities Group, November 1979.  
 
 * This specification shall be such as to enable the local Highway 
Authority, in due course, to take over the roads and/or footways as 
highways maintainable at the public expense. 

 



Development Control Committee/Minutes/15th November 2005 

 
 

4. Before any development is commenced the approval of the District 
Planning Authority is required to the detailed design of the scheme 
to provide for the satisfactory disposal of surface water run-off from 
the development; and such scheme as may be approved shall be 
carried out before (the) (any) building is occupied. 

5. Before any part of the development hereby permitted is commenced 
the junction of the estate road with the existing public highway shall 
be constructed and the estate road shall also be constructed for at 
least 60 metres into the site to the satisfaction of the District 
Planning Authority. 

6. When the application is made for approval of the 'reserved matters', 
that application shall show adequate land within the site reserved 
for the parking of all vehicles expected to call at the permitted 
building at any one time. Such parking provision as approved by the 
District Planning Authority shall be made on the site before the 
building is occupied, and shall thereafter be used for or be available 
for use for vehicle parking at all times when the premises are in use. 

7. The line of the proposed bypass road, as shown on drawing 
received by SKDC in connection with S02/0643 shall be provided 
and such connection shall be retained and safeguarded to allow for 
the eventual development of the adjoining land to the east, via the 
site subject of this application. 

 
8. Existing hedges on the site boundaries shall be retained and 

protected during the development period in accordance with details 
to be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning 
authority. 

 
9. Development should proceed fully in accordance with the approved 

Flood Risk Assessment, and the applicant shall confirm completion 
of the approved scheme in writing within one month thereafter. 

 
10. The 10m wide green strip on the attached copy of the submitted 

location plan shall be retained as landscaped buffer in accordance 
with details to be submitted and approved in writing by the local 
planning authority.  Such details as may be approved in writing shall 
be undertaken in their entirety prior to the commencement of the 
construction of any building on the site. 

 
11. No development shall take place upon the application site until the 

applicant has secured the implementation of a programme of 
archaeological work, in accordance with a written scheme of 
investigation, which has been submitted by the applicant and 
approved by the District Planning Authority.  

 
 
 
 

 



Development Control Committee/Minutes/15th November 2005 

620. PLANNING MATTERS – LIST FOR DEBATE 
 
Decision:- 
 
To determine applications, or make observations, as listed below:- 
 
 SU.1 
 
Application ref: S05/1288/25  
 
Description:  55 houses for Registered Social Landlord 
 
Location:  R/o 30-38 Spalding Road, Deeping St. James 
 
Decision:  Deferred 
 
(2.10 pm – Councillor Helyar entered the meeting.) 
 
Noting comments made during the public speaking sessions from:- 
 
 Mr S Lee, 16 Millfield Road, Deeping St James – objecting 
 
 Mr P Linford, 1 Tudor Place, Deeping St James – objecting 
 
 Mr P Mills, Nottingham Community Housing Association – applicants 
 
together with report of site inspection, objections from the Parish Council, 
comments from the Housing Strategy Manager, Highway Authority, LCC 
Education Authority and the Primary Care Trust, no objection from the 
Environment Agency and an objection from Welland and Deepings Internal 
Drainage Board, together with representations (including a petition) from 
neighbouring residents and submissions in support from the applicants, 
together with further representations from nearby owners/residents and further 
representations form the applicants’ agents, Development Control Services 
Manager authorised to determine the application, after consultation with the 
Chairman and Vice Chairman, subject to the completion of an appropriate 
planning obligation to ensure that the affordability remains so in perpetuity and 
for the future maintenance of the public open space and subject also to 
appropriate conditions, including a condition in relation to boundary treatment 
to be at a minimum height to be agreed with the local planning authority.    
 
SU.2 
 
Application ref: S05/1274/25  
 
Description: Residential development (12) 
 
Location:  R/o 30-38, Spalding Road, Deeping St. James 
 
Decision:  Refused 

 



Development Control Committee/Minutes/15th November 2005 

 
Noting comments made during the public speaking session from:- 
 
 Mr P Linford – 1 Tudor Place, Deeping St James – objecting 
 
 Mr P Bywater – on behalf of the applicants 
 
together with comments from the Highway Authority, LCC Education 
Authority, objections from the Parish Council and Welland and Deepings 
Internal Drainage Board, no objection from the Environment Agency and 
representations, including a petition, from nearby residents together with 
submissions in support from the applicants and further information from the 
applicants, together with detailed conclusions from the Development Control 
Services Manager. 
 
The Development Control Services Manager advised the Committee that his 
recommendation had now changed following the obtaining of further 
information regarding the interpretation of Annex ‘C’ of PPG3.  This confirmed 
that any farmyard did not become previously developed land, even when the 
current operation was not longer functioning.  On this basis, and taking into 
account the strategic housing requirement for SKDC, he could no longer 
support an approval for this market housing scheme.  It was proposed, 
seconded and agreed that the application be refused for the following 
reasons:- 
 
 
1. The proposed development consists of 12 dwellings and associated 

infrastructure on part of an underused farmyard on Broadgate Lane, 
Deeping St James.  The site contains agricultural buildings and is 
therefore to be classed as greenfield development in accordance with 
the definition in Annex ‘C’ of PPG3.  The site is within the wider built up 
area of The Deepings and is reasonably well related to the town centre 
and options for alternative means of transport exist in the area.  PPG3 
requires a sequential approach to the provision of new residential 
development and prioritises the use of land before releasing greenfield 
sites. In the opinion of the Local Planning Authority other sequentially 
preferable previously developed sites exist in the district and the 
bringing forward of this site will be prejudicial to the planned growth of 
South Kesteven district as a whole.  It would therefore be contrary to 
PPG3, Policies 2 and 3 of RSS8, Policies S1, S2, H1 and H2 of the 
Lincolnshire Structure Plan Proposed Changes (Feb 2005).  It is 
considered that the development of this agricultural land for residential 
use may prejudice the proper planned growth of housing stock in the 
district prior to the issue of a folder of development documents for 
South Kesteven contrary to the aims and objectives of PPS1. 

 
1. Additionally the development proposes the construction of four 2 storey 

properties (plots 5, 6, 7, and 8) along the southern boundary of the site 
where it abuts 67 Broadgate Lane.  These properties are in particular 
close proximity to the boundary.  The inclusion of 1st floor bedroom 

 



Development Control Committee/Minutes/15th November 2005 

windows in the southern elevation will result in unacceptable levels of 
overlooking to detriment of the amenities of the occupiers of 
67 Broadgate Lane.  Such harm arising is contrary to the aims and 
objectives of policies H6 and EN1 of the South Kesteven Local Plan. 

 
621. INFORMATION RELATING TO DEVELOPMENT CONTROL AND 

OTHER PLANNING ACITIVITY. 
 
The Development Control Services Manager submitted his report PLA538 
listing details of applications not determined within the eight week time period.  
Also submitted was a list of applications dealt with under delegated powers. 
 
622. CLOSE OF MEETING 
 
The meeting closed at 3.05 pm. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



AGENDA ITEM NO. 7 
 

REPORT PLA.544 
 

 
 
 
Development Control Committee 
6 December 2005  
 
 
Report by Enforcement Officer 
 
 
1. Cancer Research UK, 16 High Street, Stamford. 
 
The Site 
 
The premises Cancer Research UK, 16 High Street, Stamford occupies a frontage which faces 
onto the pedestrian walkway along the main high street in the centre of Stamford.  The property 
is a grade II listed building and is a 3 storey, early 18th century stone building which has a 
timber shop frontage and lies within the Stamford Conservation Area. 
 
Breaches of Planning Control 
 
Members may recall listed building consent S04/LB/6292 – replacement signage.  This 
application was refused as it was considered the projecting sign was an unsympathetic feature 
on the grade II listed building.  This remains in situ. 
 
The shopfront to the premises has also been painted in a deep purple colour. 
 
Planning Policy 
 
Policies C5 and C6 of the Local Plan deal with alterations to listed buildings.  The policies reject 
applications which have a detrimental effect on the appearance and character of listed 
buildings.  Policy EN1 seeks to protect and enhance the built environment, through the 
reflection of appropriate designs and materials. 
 
Officer Comments 
 
The alterations are considered to be inappropriate, utilising a vivid colour scheme which pays 
no respect to the traditional character of the building.  It is considered the colour scheme and 
signage are not sympathetic to the character or appearance of the listed building.  They do not 
preserve or enhance the Conservation Area. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That authority be given for appropriate enforcement action to be taken. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2. The New Inn, 10 West Street, Folkingham. 

Agenda Item 7 



 Insertion of windows and doors also erection of odour extractor unit. 
 
The Site 
 
The premises were formerly 2 cottages and is now a public house which is situated on the 
north side of West Street, Folkingham.  The property is a grade II listed building which has a 
red brick and colour washed frontage and lies within the Conservation Area. 
 
Background 
 
Members may recall a recent planning approval for a rear extension incorporating kitchen, 
toilets and dining area at the public house (S05/0471/32 and S05/LB/6390/32). 
 
The extension to the rear of the public house is not listed in its own right, but is attached to the 
main building which has a listing.  The extension therefore falls within the definition of a listed 
building by virtue of Section 1 of the Town and Country Planning (Listed Buildings and 
Conservation Areas) Act. 
 
There was a condition attached to the planning approval requiring detailed drawings of new 
windows and doors to be submitted to the local authority prior to commencement of the 
development. 
 
The required details were submitted by the applicant and indicated that white primed treated 
softwood would be the material used for both the windows and doors.  This was approved. 
 
Breaches of Planning Control 
 
A recent complaint was received taking issue with the materials (UPVC) used in connection 
with the windows and doors to the rear extension of the public house.  Further concern was 
expressed about the erection of an odour extractor unit above the kitchen area of the 
extension. 
 
Planning Policy 
 
Policies C5 and C6 of the Local Plan deal with alterations to listed buildings.  The policies reject 
applications which have a detrimental effect on the appearance and character of listed 
buildings.  Policy EN1 seeks to protect and enhance the built environment through the 
reflection of appropriate design and materials. 
 
Officer Comments 
 
It is considered the UPVC windows and doors used in the extension are entirely inappropriate 
in respect of materials used and have severely compromised the character and appearance of 
the main building which is listed. 
 
The silver metal extractor unit which has been erected forms a discordant feature and is 
visually detrimental to the Conservation Area. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That authority be given for appropriate enforcement action to be taken. 
 
R W Edwards 
Development Control Services Manager 
 
 

 



RELEVANT CONSIDERATIONS OF THIS REPORT 
  

SIGNIFICANT 
 

 
MINOR 

 
NONE 

STATUTORY POWERS *   
STAT/EU REGULATIONS *   
COUNCIL STRATEGIES  *  
COUNCIL POLICIES  *  
T & C PLANNING *   
BEST VALUE *   
HUMAN RIGHTS  *  
 

 



 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 
 

Agenda Item 8 



SF.1 S05/1344/35 Registration Date:  06-Oct-2005
 

Applicant Mr & Mrs J  Hurst 135, Barrowby Road, Grantham, NG318AE 
Agent Mr A J  Mears 22, Gloucester Road, Grantham, Lincs, NG31 8RJ 
Proposal First floor extension to dwelling 
Location 135, Barrowby Road, Grantham 
App Type Full Planning Permission 

 
RECOMMENDATION:   That the development be Approved subject to condition(s) 
 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years 
from the date of this permission. 

2. The materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the extension 
hereby permitted shall match those used in the existing building. 

3. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning General Permitted 
Development Order 1995 (or any other revoking or re-enacting that Order, no windows, 
doors or other openings shall be inserted into the eastern side elevation of the 
development hereby permitted without the prior consent in writing of the local planning 
authority.  

 
The reason(s) for the condition(s) is/are: 
 

1. Required to be imposed pursuant to section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 
2. These details have not been submitted and the District Planning Authority wish to ensure 

that the colour and type of materials to be used harmonise with the surrounding 
development in the interests of visual amenity and in accordance with Policies EN1 and H6 
of the South Kesteven Local Plan. 

3. To protect the amenities of adjacent occupiers. 
 
Note(s) to Applicant 

1. You are advised that the application site falls within an area which requires protection from 
Radon. You are advised to contact the District Council's Building Control Services to 
ascertain the level of protection required, and whether geological assessment is necessary. 

2. This permission shall not be construed as granting rights to development on, under or over 
land not in the control of the applicant. 

3. The attached planning permission is for development which will involve building up to, or 
close to, the boundary of the site.  Your attention is drawn to the fact that, if you should 
need access to neighbouring land in another ownership in order to facilitate the construction 
of the building and its future maintenance, you are advised to obtain permission from the 
owner of such land for such access before work is commenced. 

 
 

*   *   *   *   * 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
 

SF.2 S05/1392/12 Registration Date:  19-Oct-2005
 

Applicant South Kesteven District Council C/o Agent 
Agent Duncan Lucas, SKDC Tenancy Services Council Offices, St Peter's Hill, 

Grantham, NG31 6PZ 
Proposal Construction of communal off-road parking facility 
Location In front of 31-35 St. Pauls Gardens, Bourne 
App Type Full Planning Permission 

 
RECOMMENDATION:   That the development be Approved subject to condition(s) 
 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years 
from the date of this permission.  

 
The reason(s) for the condition(s) is/are: 
 

1. Required to be imposed pursuant to section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 
 
 

*   *   *   *   * 
 
 
 

SF.3 S05/1438/12, 76 Registration Date:  26-Oct-2005
 

Applicant Henry Davidson Developments Ltd C/o Agent 
Agent Marcus Lambert, PPML Consulting Limited Kinetic Centre, Theobald Street, 

Elstree, Herts, WD6 4PJ 
Proposal Link road and access 
Location Pt OS 2173, South Road (A15), Bourne 
App Type Reserved Matters 

 
RECOMMENDATION:   That the development be Approved subject to the following condition(s) 
and any further conditions attached at Committee: 
 

1. No development shall take place upon the application site until the applicant has 
secured the implementation of a programme of archaeological work, in accordance with 
a written scheme of investigation, which has been submitted by the applicant and 
approved by the District Planning Authority.  

 
The reason(s) for the condition(s) is/are: 
 

1. To ensure that satisfactory provision is made for the evaluation, investigation, preservation 
(in situ where necessary) and recording of any possible archaeological remains on the site 
and in accordance with Policy R4 of the South Kesteven Local Plan. 

 
 

*   *   *   *   * 
 
 

 



 
 

AGENDA ITEM     
 
 

Development Control Committee 
6 December 2005  
 

 
SU.1 S03/1669/69 Registration Date:  15-Dec-2003

 
Applicant Maiden Properties Limited 8, Sheep Market, Stamford, PE9 2QZ 
Agent Wilson & Heath Architects 112, Queens Walk, Stamford, Lincs, PE9 2QE 
Proposal Erection of an hotel 
Location Former Welland Motor Factors Site, North Street, Stamford 

 
Site Details 
Parish(es) 
 

 
Stamford 
Conservation Area 
1000 sq.m. plus in Conservation Area 
A Class Road 
Demolition of any building - BR1 
Radon Area - Protection required 
Listed Building (Grade II) 
Area of special control for adverts 
C9 Area Conservation Policy 
S1 Town Centre Shopping Area 
Airfield Zone - No consultation required 
Drainage - Welland and Nene 

 
REPORT 
 
The Site and its Surroundings 
 
The application site is located on the south side of North Street, directly opposite the public car 
park. 
 
It comprises two workshop buildings either side of a forecourt with two vehicular access points off 
North Street. 
 
Although currently vacant and unused it was last occupied by a motor factors business. 
 
To the west is the Grade II* listed Browne’s Hospital.  To the south, facing onto Broad Street, is the 
Lincolnshire Poacher public house and to the east Nags Head Passage, a narrow pedestrian 
thoroughfare that connects North Street and Broad Street. 
 
Site History 
 
The site has been the subject of several applications for development since it came into the current 
owners possession. 
 
In January 2001 planning permission was granted (S00/1235/69) for a change of use to Class A1 
(Retail), A2 (Financial and Professional Services), A3 (Food and Drink), C3 (Residential) and 
retention of the existing B1 (Business) use. 

 



 
In November 2001 permission was granted (S01/0762/69) for the erection of a tyre and exhaust 
fitting centre whilst retaining and converting an existing building. 
 
In November 2002 planning permission was granted (S02/0762/69) for the entire redevelopment of 
the site for a tyre and exhaust centre. 
 
Consent for the demolition of the existing buildings on the site was granted in November 2002 
under application ref LB/5860 and remains valid until November 2007. 
 
The Proposal 
 
The proposal involves the demolition of the existing buildings on the site and replace them with a 
38 bedroom hotel. 
 
The submitted drawings show the hotel to be constructed of natural limestone and Bradstone 
Cotswold artificial slates. 
 
It would be three storey and built right up to the back edge of the footpath.  There would be two 3-
storey wings off either end of the frontage element, creating an enclosed courtyard to the rear. 
 
The overall height of the front elevation would be 10.5m, which due to the rising ground levels, 
would be more or less in-line with the rear of the Browne’s Hospital to the west.  However, due to 
the fall I levels to the east, the building would at one point be approximately 12m high to the ridge 
alongside the Nags Head Passage, reinforcing significantly the sense of enclosure to this narrow 
pedestrian thoroughfare. 
 
There would be no on-site parking, which is not a concern to the Highway Authority who have taken 
into account the fact that there is a public car park opposite. 
 
In addition to the bedroom accommodation a small conference room is proposed. 
 
Policy Considerations 
 
Central Government Planning Policy Guidance 
 
PPG13 – Transport. 
 
PPG15 – Planning and the Historic Environment: 
 

Section 72 of the Act requires that special attention shall be paid in the exercise of planning 
functions to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of a 
conservation area. 
 
Many conservation areas include gap sites, or buildings that make no positive contribution 
to, or indeed detract from, the character or appearance of the area; their replacement 
should be a stimulus to imaginative, high quality design, and seen as an opportunity to 
enhance the area.  What is important is not that new buildings should directly imitate earlier 
style, but that they should be designed with respect for their context, as part of a larger 
whole which has a well-established character and appearance of its own. 
 

PPG21 – Tourism: 
 

“Whatever the type of hotel or its location, it should: 

 



 
• fit well with its surroundings, having regard to its siting, scale, design, materials and 

landscaping; and 
• be in harmony with the local environment (taking into account noise, traffic and 

parking in the vicinity). 
 
PPS1 – Delivering Sustainable Development. 
 
RSS8 – Regional Spatial Strategy for the East Midlands. 
 
Lincolnshire Structure Plan 
 
Policy BE3: 
 

PROVISION WILL BE MADE TO ENSURE THAT THE CHARACTER AND 
APPEARANCE OF THE HISTORIC BUILT ENVIRONMENT IS PROTECTED AND/OR 
ENHANCED. 
 

Policy E5: 
 

TOURISM DEVELOPMENT SHOULD BE LOCATED IN EXISTING SETTLEMENTS IN 
LINE WITH THE OVERALL SPATIAL STRATEGY AND SHOULD BE OF A SUITABLE 
SCALE AND FORM TO COMPLEMENT THEIR LOCALITY. 
 
OUTSIDE THESE URBAN AREAS, TOURISM DEVELOPMENT SHOULD BE 
ENCOURAGED WHERE IT ASSISTS FARM DIVERSIFICATION OR THE RETENTION 
OF BUILDINGS CONTRIBUTING TO THE CHARACTER OF THE COUNTRYSIDE. 
 
SUCH TOURISM DEVELOPMENT WILL BE CONSIDERED FAVOURABLY 
PARTICULARLY WHERE IT WILL ASSIST IN THE ECONOMIC AND PHYSICAL 
REGENERATION OF AN AREA AND THE DEVELOPMENT WOULD BENEFIT THE 
LOCAL COMMUNITY. 
 

Policy S1 – Promoting Sustainable Development. 
 
Policy S2 – Location of Development. 
 
South Kesteven Local Plan 
 
Policy C9: 
 

APPLICATIONS FOR PLANNING PERMISSION FOR DEVELOPMENT WILL BE 
CONSIDERED HAVING REGARD TO: 
 
i) THE EFFECT OF THE PROPOSAL ON THE CHARACTER AND APPEARANCE 

OF THE AREA; 
ii) THE APPROPRIATENESS OF THE PROPOSAL IN TERMS OF DESIGN, SCALE 

AND MATERIALS; AND 
iii) THE IMPACT OF ANY NEW USE ON THE AREA. 

 
 
 
 
 

 



Statutory Consultations 
 
Historic Buildings Advisor (comments on original submission): 
 

“I am in receipt of details to the above, which show the erection of a large three storey 
building on the site forma hotel. 
 
Although I can see no reason to object to the principle of the development not least as it will 
serve to improve the appearance of this currently run down site, I would draw attention to 
the rather disappointing treatment of the principal north facing elevation to the building along 
the North Street frontage, in respect of modelling, articulation of elements and features, and 
style.  This very prominently displayed elevation will have a major impact on the street 
scene in the vicinity and, in my opinion, warrants an architectural statement of discernible 
quality and appeal, which the submitted scheme lacks.  I would suggest that a more 
considered design s called for here, perhaps with scope for a contemporary approach.” 
 

Comments on first revision: 
 

“I am in receipt of further amended details to the above (Drawing No. A3 Revision 1) 
together with a letter from the applicants architect dated 12 December 2004 and would 
advise that the minor amendments made, clearly without conviction, to the detailing of 
windows to the principal street facing north elevation to the building fail to address the major 
issue here with that, in my opinion, the design of the building façade facing North Street in 
particular in unimaginative, disappointing visually and architecturally, and that I am therefore 
unable to advise that it will be appropriate in this key sensitive location. 
 
I remain of the view that the building design here should make a bold and distinctive 
architectural statement, still unfortunately lacking at present, and that a fundamental 
reconsideration of the design concept is required.” 
 

Comments on latest revision: 
 

“I am in receipt of further amended details to the above (Drawing No. 5) together with a 
letter from the Applicants’ Architect of 7 September 2005.  the amended scheme shows 
various further changes to the treatment of the principal street facing elevation to the 
proposed building including the introduction of reconstituted stone mullioned windows, the 
re-introduction of a hipped roof over the central entrance bay with a clock tower feature to 
the roof, and the removal of the ashlar string courses previously proposed. 
 
The changes to the previous scheme as described are, in my opinion, of minor significance 
in the context and I remain of the view that the design of the building (the element facing 
North Street in particular) is disappointing and mediocre both visually and architecturally 
and will not be appropriate in this prominent and sensitive location. 
 
Rather than (unconvincingly) tinkering with details, as the Architect has continued to do 
since the original scheme was criticised, I would advise that a fundamental reconsideration 
of the design concept is required in order to produce a building of readily discernible quality 
that will make a positive (and erudite) contribution to the townscape in the vicinity and 
enhance Conservation Area character and appearance.  The poor modelled and articulated 
currently proposed scheme, in my opinion, sadly represents a missed opportunity in this 
respect.” 
 

Local Highway Authority:  If permitted requests standard condition B7 and the following condition: 
 

 



There shall be no means of vehicular access or drop off/pick up to the permitted buildings 
from North Street. 
 

Community Archaeologist:  If permitted, requests standard condition W7. 
 
Environment Agency:  No objection. 
 
Stamford Town Council: 
 

“We are concerned about this development for a number of reasons.  Firstly, the lack of 
information with regard to the height in context to the surrounding properties.  We 
understand that surrounding properties have cellars that are adjacent or underneath these 
buildings and are concerned about the effect on these properties.  We are concerned about 
the effect on the passage to the side of the Lincolnshire Poacher, there should be no 
openings into this wall. We would like more information about the use of space within the 
hotel – the number of rooms, provision of restaurant, bar etc.  We would like more 
elevations.  We have concerns about the impact of the drainage in the area from both the 
residential waste and restaurant’s waste. 

 
Representations as a result of publicity 
 
The application has been advertised in accordance with statutory requirements, the closing date for 
representations being 30 January 2004. 
 
No representations have been received from members of the public as a result of the publicity. 
 
Stamford Civic Society, however, have commented as follows. 
 
Comments on original submission: 
 

“I refer to the submission in respect of the above site for demolition of the existing buildings 
and the erection of an hotel.  This was on the grounds of:- 
 
a) Inappropriate function within the historic conservation area, should be on an 

industrial/outer retail area. 
 
b) The buildings inset into the former town walls should respect that ambience. 
 
c) Traffic would go in and out of the site at a dangerous part of North Street. 
 
d) A tyre warehouse should not be permitted next to one of the first Medieval 

almshouses in England. 
 
e) Problems of access for the maintenance of the adjacent buildings of Browne’s 

Hospital. 
 
With respect to the new application: 
 
1. We are pleased to note that this application is to replace the previous one which we 

thought inappropriate. 
 
2. We note that there will be no on-site parking, we commented on the previous 

application that there should be no vehicles going in or out of the site because of its 
position on North Street.  If approved, the management of the hotel will need to 

 



ensure their customers do not unload along the North Street frontage but park their 
vehicles first. 

 
3. We note that the proposed height of the building will equate to the nearby Antiques 

Warehouse and the back of the buildings in Broad Street. 
 
4. We believe the problem of access to an inaccessible part of the roof of some of the 

Browne’s Hospital buildings can be resolved following discussions between the 
parties. 

 
5. We have no comments on the design but we do welcome the clock on the frontage.” 
 

Comments on revised elevational treatment: 
 

“I refer to your letter of 25 January in response to mine of 22 January.  We have now had 
the opportunity to look into the history of this application which has now been considered by 
our Executive Committee including our architectural advisers. 
 
As you will know, the Society is greatly concerned about the unreasonable delays over the 
planning process for this project.  The Society fully supported the concept of hotel 
development on this site as indeed have the Governors of Browne’s Hospital. 
 
The key issues here seem to us to be: 
 
1. There would appear to be a fixed view as to what is the appropriate design for this 

site regardless of function.  The idea of a variety of windows for a hotel seems to us 
misguided and leads to French windows and balconies facing North Street – its 
traffic and unsightly views. 

 
2. We have commented on other recent applications that there is no architectural 

coherence in the advice being given to your Committee in respect of new buildings 
in central Stamford.  Stamford is an eclectic mixture of styles linked only by common 
building materials.  It would appear that there is a desire to have fenestration for this 
application matching features with the rear of the adjacent Victorian parts of 
Browne’s Hospital.  How every odd when one looks at the buildings either side of the 
Hospital on its Broad Street frontage. 

 
3. This is not the right site in our view for a building to make a bold architectural 

statement.  It is a sheltered, recessed site resulting in a building viewed only briefly 
from its own frontage.  North Street is (and will remain) dominated on the side of the 
road by rear walls and adapted coach houses.  One piece of bold architecture would 
therefore stand out as wholly incongruous.  The Society is conscious of a new house 
under construction elsewhere in the town where this is only too apparent and it fails 
to blend with the adjacent street scene. 

 
4. The unfortunate consequence is leading to a building of assorted features of our 

architectural heritage with no consistency.  We can see no benefit in a demand for 
more variety of windows, balconies and other “hang-ons”. 

 
5. The Society reiterates its dismay at the length of time taken to consider this 

particular application, the advice proffered which we believe is misguided and the 
danger of producing a fussy façade with no integrity.  Can we please keep the 
design simple and add no more buts and pieces to the façade.  This scheme is in 
grave danger of ending up a “Pick and Mix” architecture. 

 



 
6. We would specifically request the Society’s concerns are related to your members 

and, in particular, our concern at the lack of any coherent guidance being provided 
by your Authority to prospective developers in the central area of Stamford.” 

 
Planning Panel Comments 
 
Development Control Services Manager to determine subject to amendments. 
 
Acceptable amendments not forthcoming, therefore referred to Committee. 
 
Applicants Submissions 
 
The applicants agent has submitted the following in support of the latest revisions to the front 
elevation: 
 

“Further to our several recent discussions with Mr Wright, while we stand by all the points 
raised in our letters dated 12 December 2004 and 9 February 2005, it is evident that we 
have yet to provide a scheme for the main road elevation, which is acceptable to the 
planning authority. 
 
Clearly this application, which was submitted on 3 December 2003 (approaching 2 years 
ago), needs to be determined and while we have a clear way forward to appeal to achieve 
this end, we would much prefer to reach agreement with you – to move the project forward.  
In that spirit therefore, we have discussed all the points raised in your various letters again 
with our Client, Maiden Properties Ltd. 
 
Following that discussion, we wish to submit our final proposal for this contentious part of 
the scheme, which is illustrated on our new drawing No. 5 (enclosed) and in that regard, we 
draw your attention to the following points: 
 
1. We have illustrated the variation in the fenestration as requested. 
 
2. We have introduced mullioned windows throughout the elevation, with label 

mouldings on the fenestration to the principal floors. 
 
3. We have re-introduced the hipped roof to the entrance projection, to bring back 

harmony to the elevation as a whole. 
 
4. All ashlar work (mullioned windows, mouldings, quoins and ashlar to the front 

entrance area), is to be in reconstructed stone.  The remainder will be in coursed 
natural stone or sand/cement rendering – as indicated. 

 
5. We have reinstated the clock tower feature to the front entrance roof. 
 
6. We have removed the ashlar string courses which, with the window treatment 

introduced, created a fussy appearance. 
 
7. All other features remain as per our previous scheme. 
 
As with the house recently constructed at Nos. 12/13 St Peter’s Street, the elevation would 
be subject to fine detailing prior to construction- to ensure all the elements are in harmony 
and we hope that this latest scheme will now satisfy your requirements. 
 

 



Finally, we are instructed to ask you, to put this scheme to your committee (hopefully with a 
favourable recommendation) – for consideration and approval.” 
 

Conclusions 
 
As is obvious from the date of registration, this application has, for various reasons, been awaiting 
a decision for some time. 
 
As the Historic Buildings Advisor point out in his original comments, this is a very prominent site in 
the Stamford Conservation Area and redevelopment on the scale proposed will have a very 
significant impact on the street scene.  For this reason the authority need to ensure that the 
principal street facing elevation provides the necessary enhancement to the appearance of this part 
of the Conservation Area. 
 
Unfortunately, neither the Historic Buildings Advisor nor your Officers are satisfied, despite several 
revisions, that the design would result in the opportunity for enhancement the site affords. 
 
The developments previously approved on the site in connection with its current authorised use 
involved a much smaller scale building set well back into the site and a new stone wall, of varying 
height along the frontage. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   That the development be Refused for the following reason(s) 
 

 
 

1. It is considered that the design of the proposed development for this important site on the 
northern edge of Stamford Conservation Area and adjacent to the Grade II* listed Browne's 
Hospital, particularly the treatment of the front elevation of the hotel, lacks both the visual 
and architectural quality to provide the enhancement to the apeparance of the area which a 
site of this prominence warrants. 
 
The proposal is considered, therefore, to be contrary to Central Government Planning Policy 
Guidance contained in PPG15 (Planning and the Historic Environment), PPG21 (Tourism), 
Policy BE3 of the Lincolnshire Structure Plan (Deposit Draft - April 2004) and Policy C9 of 
the South Kesteven Local Plan. 

 
 

*   *   *   *   *   * 
 
 

 



 
 

SU.2 S05/1348/25 Registration Date:  10-Oct-2005
 
Applicant Mr M  Farooq C/o Agent 
Agent Mr N P  Branston MRICS 400, Eastfield Road, Peterborough, PE1 4RE 
Proposal Demolition and rebuild workshop, flue stack and change of use to 

Restaurant (A3) 
Location 23, Bridge Street, Deeping St. James 

 
Site Details 
Parish(es) 
 

 
Deeping St James 
Conservation Area 
Adj authority - Peterborough City - AA7 
Demolition of any building - BR1 
Radon Area - Protection required 
Area of special control for adverts 
C9 Area Conservation Policy 
Drainage - Welland and Nene 
EA: Flood Risk Zone 2/3 (new bld only) 

 
REPORT 
 
Introduction 
 
Councillor Ray Auger has requested that this application be referred to the Development Control 
Committee for the following reason(s): 
 

“The site formerly Manor Tyres has limited onsite parking, and the surrounding properties 
do not have ‘off highway’ parking, congestion and narrowing off the highway is very much a 
problem in this area. 

 
Due to lack of parking facilities in this area, I do not believe that this application should be 
granted.  (Note proximity of the junction of New Road to the site)” 

 
The Site and its Surroundings 
 
The site is located on the south side of Bridge Street Deeping St James and is currently used as a 
dwelling, motor spares shop and tyre filling workshop (Bridge Street Autoparts).  The main part of 
the building is two storey and fronts directly onto Bridge Street.  The property is of brick 
construction with roman roof tiles.  To the rear of the property there is a workshop, which is linked 
to the main building.  The workshop has primarily brick walls although the south and west elevation 
do contain an element of stone.  The roof of the workshop appears to be corrugated asbestos. 
 
Site History 
 
The most recent application on the site was for a change of use to residential development 
(application reference S04/1593).  The application was withdrawn due to the need for a flood risk 
assessment to be undertaken. 
 
There have been no other recent applications, which are material to the determination of this 
application. 
 

 



The Proposal 
 
This is a change of use application to convert the existing shop and dwelling into a restaurant.  The 
application seeks approval for the demolition of the rear part of the building currently used as the 
tyre-filling workshop.  The workshop would be replaced with an extension of a similar size in order 
to provide the main seating area for the restaurant.  The applicant has indicated that the proposed 
hours of use would be between 09:00hrs and 19:00hrs.  Eight off-street parking spaces will be 
provided. 

 
Policy Considerations 
 
South Kesteven Local Plan 
 
Policy E5 – Small Businesses 
 
Policy EN1 – Protection and Enhancement of the Environment 
 
Policy C9 – Buildings in Conservation Areas 
 
Statutory Consultations 
 
Parish Council:  Objects on the grounds that volume of traffic would be increased with car parking 
provision inadequate for an already congested street. 
 
Peterborough City Council:  No comments. 
 
Environmental Health:  No objections subject to conditions requiring extraction equipment and 
hours of use restricted to between 09:00hrs and 23:00hrs. 
 
Welland & Deepings Internal Drainage Board:  The Board’s Services should not be affected but as 
the site lies adjacent to the River Welland the Environment Agency’s comments must be sought. 
 
Environment Agency:  Objects to the application subject to the submission of an amended Flood 
Risk Assessment. 
 
Community Archaeologist:  The proposed development does not affect any known archaeological 
sites. 
 
Local Highway Authority:  No objections subject to off-street parking and turning space being 
provided. 
 
Consultant Architect:  No objections to the proposed demolition.  Recommends amendments to 
proposed scheme. 
 
Representations as a Result of Publicity 
 
The application has been advertised in accordance with established procedures and 
representations have been received from the following: 

 
1. Mr Burnett, 15 Bridge Street Deeping St James. 
2. Mr & Mrs Auger, 72 Bridge Street Deeping St James. 
3. D Copland, 94 Bridge Street Deeping St James. 
4. Mr Gill, 90 Bridge Street Deeping St James. 
5. A Hilleard, 33 Bridge Street Deeping St James. 

 



6. M East, 27 Bridge Street Deeping St James. 
7. L Martyr, 25 Bridge Street Deeping St James. 
8. Mrs Walker, 98 Bridge Street Deeping St James. 
9. Mr & Mrs Williams, 31 Bridge Street Deeping St James. 
10. D Desmond, 80 Bridge Street Deeping St James. 
11. Mr & Mrs Warren, 70 Bridge Street Deeping St James. 
12. Mr & Mrs Cannon, 78 Bridge Street Deeping St James. 
13. Mr& Mrs Just, 88 Bridge Street Deeping St James. 
14. R Tinworth, 36 Bridge Street Deeping St James. 
15. Mr Wilding, 15A Bridge Street Deeping St James. 
16. K Woodward, Firstanlast 1 New Row Deeping St James. 
17. A petition has also been submitted containing 71 signatures. 

 
The Following issues have been raised: 
 

a) Highway safety and parking, 
b) Concerns that the restaurant will have a “take-away”, 
c) Litter, 
d) Smells and cooking odours, 
e) Concerns that any adverts on the building would impact on residential especially if 

illuminated, 
f) No need for another food outlet in the area, 
g) Impact on the Conservation Area, 
h) Concerns about late night opening hours, 
i) Noise and disturbance, 
j) More appropriate sites in the area, 
k) Any additional lighting would be unacceptably intrusive.  

 
Applicants Submissions 
 
None. 
 
Conclusions 
 
Concerns have been raised about the property been used as a take-away.  The application seeks 
approval for use as a restaurant (Use Class A3).  The premises will not be used as a take-away.  If 
the applicant wishes to have a take-away in the future a fresh application would be required and the 
issues surrounding such a use would then be considered.  As this application relates to the use of 
the property as a restaurant only it is not considered that there would be any increase in litter in the 
surrounding area. 
 
The proposed scheme has been amended in accordance with the advice from the Council’s 
Consultant Architect.  The proposed scheme will not have a detrimental impact on the character of 
the Conservation Area.  No additional lighting has been proposed and any used in the signage 
would be controlled under the Advertisement Regulations. 
 
Concerns have been raised with regards to noise and disturbance.  The Council’s Environmental 
Health Department have raised no objections to the proposal but have recommended conditions to 
ensure that the premises are not in use after 23:00hrs.  With regards to concerns about cooking 
smells it is proposed to attach a condition requiring precise details of the proposed extraction 
equipment to be submitted and agreed in writing by the local planning authority, in order to ensure 
that the equipment effectively removes all odours.  The flue will be screened in a brick chimney in 
order to ensure that it does not have a detrimental impact on the visual amenity of the Conservation 
Area. 

 



 
A significant number of the objections related to concerns about increased traffic and highway 
safety issues, in particular the existing problem of on-street parking.  The Highway Authority has 
raised no objections to the proposed scheme subject to the parking and manoeuvring space shown 
on the submitted plans been maintained.  The existing property is currently used as a shop, tyre-
filling workshop and dwelling.  It is considered that the existing use of the property could potentially 
generate the same if not more traffic than that of the proposed restaurant use.  It is therefore 
recommended that highway safety issues should not be considered as a reason for refusal. 
 
If on street parking in this area is such a problem the County Council could consider putting in 
double yellow lines.  This is a matter for the County Council and not something that can be 
controlled by way of a condition on this application. 
 
Issues relating to there been no need for another food outlet in the area are not a material planning 
considerations and cannot therefore be considered in the determination of this application. 
 
The proposed development complies with the policies of the Development Plan and is accordingly 
recommended for approval subject to the submission of additional Flood Risk information 
acceptable to the Environment Agency. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   That the development be Approved subject to condition(s) 
 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from 
the date of this permission. 

2. The arrangements shown on the approved plan *** dated *** for the 
parking/turning/loading/unloading of vehicles shall be available at all times when the 
premises are in use. 

3. Before the use is commenced, equipment shall be installed as will suppress the emission of 
fumes or smell and obviate odours from frying or other cooking processes. No development 
shall take place until details of the equipment have been submitted to and approved by the 
District Planning Authority. 

4. The premises shall be used as a restaurant Class A3 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
(Use Classes) (amendment) (England) Order 2005. 

5. The premises shall not be used for business purposes outside the hours of 9am to 11pm 
without the prior written consent of the local planning authority. 

6. This consent relates to the application as amended by drawing no. 25.089/2A received on 3 
November 2005. 

7. Before the development hereby permitted is commenced, final details of the materials to be 
used in the construction of external walls and roofs shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the District Planning Authority. Only such materials as may be agreed shall be 
used in the development. 

8. Development shall proceed fully in accordance with the approved Flood Risk Assessment, 
and the applicant shall confirm completion of the approved scheme in writing within one 
month thereafter. 

9. The building shall not be demolished before a contract for the carrying out of works of 
redevelopment of the site has been made, and planning permission has been granted for 
the redevelopment for which the contract provides. 

 



10. Large scale details of all external joinery, to a scale of not less than 1:20, to include cross 
sections to show cills, lintols, etc., shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
District Planning Authority prior to the commencement of the development.  

 
The reason(s) for the condition(s) is/are: 
 

1. Required to be imposed pursuant to section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 
2. To allow vehicles to enter and leave the highway in a forward gear in the interests of 

highway safety, and in accordance with Policy/ies E5 and EN1 of the South Kesteven Local 
Plan. 

3. In order to protect the occupiers of nearby properties from the smells of food preparation 
and in accordance with Policy/ies E5 and EN1 of the South Kesteven Local Plan. 

4. For the avoidance of doubt. 
5. To ensure the proposed development does not have a detrimental impact on the residential 

amenity of adjacent properties. 
6. For the avoidance of doubt. 
7. These details have not been submitted and the District Planning Authority wish to ensure 

that the colour and type of materials to be used harmonise with the surrounding 
development in the interests of visual amenity and in accordance with Policies of the South 
Kesteven Local Plan. 

8. To reduce the risk of flooding. 

9. To ensure that demolition only commences immediately prior to the commencement of an 
approved redevelopment scheme so that visual injury does not result and in accordance 
with Policies of the South Kesteven Local Plan. 

10. No such details have been submitted and the district planning authority wish to be in a 
position to ensure that the proposed details are sympathetic to the (listed building) 
(property) and in accordance with Policies of the South Kesteven Local Plan. 

 
Note(s) to Applicant 

1. You are advised that the application site falls within an area which requires protection from 
Radon. You are advised to contact the District Council's Building Control Services to 
ascertain the level of protection required, and whether geological assessment is necessary. 

 
*   *   *   *   *   * 

 

 



 
SU.3 S05/CA/6479/25 Registration Date:  10-Oct-2005

 
Applicant Mr M  Farooq C/o Agent 
Agent Mr N P  Branston MRICS 400, Eastfield Road, Peterborough, PE1 4RE 
Proposal Demolition of rear workshop in Conservation Area 
Location 23, Bridge Street, Deeping St. James 

 
Site Details 
Parish(es) 
 

 
Deeping St James 
Conservation Area 
Adj authority - Peterborough City - AA7 
Demolition of any building - BR1 
Radon Area - Protection required 
Area of special control for adverts 
C9 Area Conservation Policy 
Drainage - Welland and Nene 
EA: Flood Risk Zone 2/3 (new bld only) 

 
REPORT 
 
The Site and its Surroundings 
 
The site is located on the south side of Bridge Street Deeping St James and is currently used as a 
dwelling, motor spares shop and tyre filling workshop (Bridge Street Autoparts).  The main part of 
the building is two storey and fronts directly onto Bridge Street.  The property is of brick 
construction with roman roof tiles.  To the rear of the property there is a workshop, which is linked 
to the main building.  The workshop has primarily brick walls although the south and west elevation 
do contain an element of stone.  The roof of the workshop appears to be corrugated asbestos. 
 
Site History 
 
The most recent application on the site was for a change of use to residential development 
(application reference S04/1593).  The application was withdrawn due to the need for a flood risk 
assessment to be undertaken. 
 
Planning application S05/1348 which is also on this agenda seeks approval for the change of use 
of the existing property to a restaurant. 
 
There have been no other recent applications, which are material to the determination of this 
application. 
 
The Proposal 
 
This is a Conservation Area Consent application for the demolition of the rear part of the building 
currently used as a tyre-filling workshop.  The workshop would be replaced with an extension of a 
similar size in order to provide the main seating area for the restaurant the subject of application 
S05/1348. 

 
Policy Considerations 
 
South Kesteven Local Plan 
 
Policy C9 – Buildings in Conservation Areas 

 



 
Statutory Consultations 
 
Parish Council:  Objects on the grounds that volume of traffic would be increased with car parking 
provision inadequate for an already congested street. 
 
Peterborough City Council:  No comments. 
 
Consultant Architect:  No objections to the proposed demolition. 
 
Representations as a Result of Publicity 
 
The application has been advertised in accordance with established procedures and 
representations have been received from the following: 

 
1. Mr Burnett, 15 Bridge Street Deeping St James. 
2. Mr & Mrs Auger, 72 Bridge Street Deeping St James. 
3. D Copland, 94 Bridge Street Deeping St James. 
4. Mr Gill, 90 Bridge Street Deeping St James. 
5. A Hilleard, 33 Bridge Street Deeping St James. 
6. M East, 27 Bridge Street Deeping St James. 
7. L Martyr, 25 Bridge Street Deeping St James. 
8. Mrs Walker, 98 Bridge Street Deeping St James. 
9. Mr & Mrs Williams, 31 Bridge Street Deeping St James. 
10. D Desmond, 80 Bridge Street Deeping St James. 
11. Mr & Mrs Warren, 70 Bridge Street Deeping St James. 
12. Mr & Mrs Cannon, 78 Bridge Street Deeping St James. 
13. Mr& Mrs Just, 88 Bridge Street Deeping St James. 
14. R Tinworth, 36 Bridge Street Deeping St James. 
15. Mr Wilding, 15A Bridge Street Deeping St James. 
16. K Woodward, Firstanlast 1 New Row Deeping St James. 
17. A petition has also been submitted containing 71 signatures. 

 
The following issues have been raised: 

 
a) Highway safety and parking, 
b) Concerns that the restaurant will have a “take-away”, 
c) Litter, 
d) Smells and cooking odours, 
e) Concerns that any adverts on the building would impact on residential especially if 

illuminated, 
f) No need for another food outlet in the area, 
g) Impact on the Conservation Area, 
h) Concerns about late night opening hours, 
i) Noise and disturbance, 
j) More appropriate sites in the area, 
k) Any additional lighting would be unacceptably intrusive.  

 
Applicants Submissions 
 
None. 
 
 
 

 



Conclusions 
 
The representations made by members of the public and the Parish Council relate to the planning 
application and not the Conservation Area Consent application for the demolition of the rear section 
of the building.  As such the matters are considered in the report on the planning application 
reference S05/1348 also contained within this agenda. 
 
The Council’s Consultant Architect has raised no objections to the proposed demolition of the 
building.  The demolition of the building would not have a detrimental impact on the character of the 
Conservation Area. 
 
The proposed development complies with the policy C9 of the adopted South Kesteven Local Plan 
and is accordingly recommended for approval. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   That the development be Approved subject to condition(s) 
 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from 
the date of this permission. 

2. The building shall not be demolished before a contract for the carrying out of works of 
redevelopment of the site has been made, and planning permission has been granted for 
the redevelopment for which the contract provides.  

 
The reason(s) for the condition(s) is/are: 
 

1. Required to be imposed pursuant to section 18 of the Planning (Listed Buildings & 
Conservation Areas) Act 1990. 

2. To ensure that demolition only commences immediately prior to the commencement of an 
approved redevelopment scheme so that visual injury does not result and in accordance 
with Policy C9 of the South Kesteven Local Plan. 

 
 

*   *   *   *   *   * 
 
 

 



 
SU.4 S05/LB/6470/69 Registration Date:  20-Sep-2005

 
Applicant Jane  Cox 24, St. Leonards Street, Stamford, PE9 2HL 
Agent  
Proposal Extension to listed building (retrospective) 
Location 24, St. Leonards Street, Stamford 

 
Site Details 
Parish(es) 
 

 
Stamford 
Conservation Area 
A Class Road 
Radon Area - Protection required 
Listed Building (Grade II) 
Area of special control for adverts 
C9 Area Conservation Policy 
H12 CoU of residential properties 
Airfield Zone - No consultation required 
Drainage - Welland and Nene 

 
REPORT 
 
The Site and its Surroundings 
 
The application property is a grade II listed, stone cottage fronting the north side of St Leonard’s 
Street some 30 metres east of the junction with Wharf Road. 
 
It is a single storey property with accommodation in the roofspace.  It is described in the Statutory 
List entry as being of last 17th or early 18th century origins.  It is one of a group of three. 
 
The property lies within Stamford Conservation Area. 
 
Site History 
 
There is no history of planning or listed building consent applications on the property. 
 
The Proposal 
 
Consent is sought, retrospectively, for a single storey extension which has recently been added to 
the rear of the property. 
 
The extension measures, approximately, 4.72m x 2.39m and is described as a ‘Garden Room’.  It is 
constructed predominantly of horizontal timber boarding and covers a substantial proportion of the 
original rear wall of the listed building.  A description of its construction and impact on the character 
and appearance of the original building appears under the Historic Building Advisor’s comments 
(see below). 
 
Policy Considerations 
 
Central Government Planning Policy Guidance 
 
PPG15  - Planning and the Historic Environment: 
 

 



Many listed buildings can sustain some degree of sensitive alteration or extension to 
accommodate continuing or new uses.  Indeed, cumulative changes reflecting the history of 
use and ownership are themselves an aspect of the special interest of some buildings, and 
the merit of some new alterations or additions, especially where they are generated within a 
secure and committed long-term ownership, should not be discounted.  Nevertheless, listed 
buildings do vary greatly in the extent to which they can accommodate change without loss 
of special interest. 
 
Some listed buildings are the subject of successive applications for alteration or extension; 
in such cases it needs to be borne in mind that minor works of indifferent quality, which may 
seem individually of little importance, can cumulatively be very destructive of a building’s 
special interest. 
 

Lincolnshire Structure Plan 
 
Policy BE3 – Conservation of the Historic Built Environment: 
 

PROVISION WILL BE MADE TO ENSURE THAT THE CHARACTER AND 
APPEARANCE OF THE HISTORIC BUILT ENVIRONMENT IS PROTECTED AND/OR 
ENHANCED.  IN PARTICULAR: 
 
• LISTED BUILDINGS WILL BE PROTECTED FROM DEMOLITION, 

INAPPROPRIATE ALTERATION OR OTHER ADVERSE CHANGE TO THEIR 
CHARACTER OR SETTING; 

• CONSERVATION AREAS AND THEIR SETTINGS WILL BE PROTECTED FROM 
DEVELOPMENT DAMAGING TO THEIR CHARACTER. 

 
South Kesteven Local Plan 
 
Policy C6: 
 

APPLICATIONS FOR ALTERATIONS OR EXTENSIONS TO A LISTED BUILDING WILL 
BE CONSIDERED HAVING REGARD TO THE EFFECT OF THE PROPOSAL ON THE 
APPEARANCE AND CHARACTER OF THE BUILDING, PARTICULARLY IN TERMS OF 
SCALE, DESIGN AND MATERIALS TO BE USED. 
 

Statutory Consultations 
 
Historic Buildings Advisor: 
 

“I have inspected the single storey lean-to extension which has relatively recently been 
erected to adjoin the rear of the existing cottage and would advise that, in my opinion, it is 
inappropriate and intrusive for the following reasons: 
 
1. The extension is too large and overbearing and dominates the rear view of the 
property, obliterating the view of the rear elevation to the original cottage which would have 
likely previously been exposed in its original form. 
 
2. The depth of the extension is so great that the top of the lean-to roof collides with the 
eaves to the original cottage roof and forms a visually and architecturally contrived and 
uncomfortable feature. 
 
3. The roof to the extension is shallow pitched and consequently covered in 
unsympathetic profiled concrete tiles. 

 



 
4. The main external wall to the extension is clad externally in horizontal timber 
boarding, again at odds with the stonework to the original cottage. 
 
5. Windows are of the most basic modern design and detail, whereas more 
sympathetic traditional detailing should be called for here.” 
 

Stamford Civic Society:  Unable to comment without proper drawings. 
 
Town Council:  Insufficient information – request original plans marked up with the relevant 
changes. 
 
Representations as a result of publicity 
 
The application has been advertised in accordance with statutory requirements, the closing date for 
representations being 21 October 2005. 
 
No representations have been received as a result of publicity. 
 
Planning Panel Comments 
 
To be determined by Committee. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   That the development be Refused for the following reason(s) 
 
 

1. It is considered that the single storey lean-to extension to the rear of the application property 
constitutes, by reason of its design, size and the unsympathetic materials of which it has 
been constructed, an inappropriate and intrusive addition and is therefore contrary to 
Central Government Planning Policy Guidance contained in PPG15 (Planning and the 
Historic Environment), Policy BE3 of the Lincolnshire Structure Plan (Deposit Draft - April 
2004) and Policy C6 of the South Kesteven Local Plan. 

 
 

*   *   *   *   *   * 
 

 



 
 

SU.5 S05/CA/6495/69 Registration Date:  07-Nov-2005
 
Applicant Peterborough Homes Ltd PO Box 125, Stamford, Lincs 
Agent PDG Architects Toll Bar House, Shrewsbury Avenue, Peterborough, PE2 

7BX 
Proposal Demolition of dwelling in Conservation Area 
Location Blackfriars House, Kings Road, Stamford 

 
Site Details 
Parish(es) 
 

 
Stamford 
Conservation Area 
Unclassified road 
Demolition of any building - BR1 
Radon Area - Protection required 
Airfield Zone - No consultation required 
Drainage - Welland and Nene 

 
REPORT 
 
The Site and its Surroundings 
 
The application building is an early 20th century detached house fronting Kings Road immediately 
to the south of the junction with Princes Road.  It is situated on a relatively large 0.1 ha (0.25 ha) 
plot in an area of predominantly Edwardian/Victorian residential properties. 
 
Site History 
 
As Members will be aware, Reserved Matters approval was granted at the 4 October meeting for 
the demolition of the house and its replacement with a terrace of six dwellings (S05/1086/69).  On 
the following day, 5 October, Northfields Conservation Area was designated, hence the need for 
this application. 
 
The Reserved Matters approval followed the granting of Outline planning permission in 2003 
(S03/0585/69) for residential development on the site.  Two conditions on the outline approval, one 
restricting the numbers of dwellings that could be built and the other requiring retention of a brick 
summerhouse were both removed on appeal. 
 
The Proposal 
 
Consent is sought to demolish the dwelling to facilitate the redevelopment approved under 
S05/1086/69. 
 
Consent is not required for the demolition of the summerhouse within the garden as its volume is 
less than 115 cubic metres.  Efforts were made to have this structure listed but it was not 
considered by English Heritage to be of sufficient architectural or historic interest. 
 
Policy Considerations 
 
National Policy 
 
PPG15 – Planning and the Historic Environment: 
 

 



In exercising conservation area controls, local planning authorities are required to pay 
special attention to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or appearance 
of the area in question; and, as with listed building controls, this should be the prime 
consideration in determining a consent application.  In the case of conservation area 
controls, however, account should clearly be taken of the part played in the architectural or 
historic interest of the area by the building for which demolition is proposed, and in particular 
of the wider effects of demolition on the building’s surroundings and on the conservation 
area as a whole. 
 
The general presumption should be in favour of retaining buildings which make a positive 
contribution to the character or appearance of a conservation area.  The Secretary of State 
expects that proposals to demolish such buildings should be assessed against the same 
broad criteria as proposals to demolish listed buildings (paragraphs 3.16-3.19 above).  In 
less clear-cut cases – for instance, where a building makes little or no such contribution – 
the local planning authority will need to have full information about what is proposed for the 
site after demolition.  Consent for demolition should not be given unless there are 
acceptable and detailed plans for any redevelopment.  It has been held that the decision-
maker is entitled to consider the merits of any proposed development in determining 
whether consent should be given for the demolition of an unlisted building in a conservation 
area. 
 

Lincolnshire Structure Plan (Deposit Draft – April 2004) 
 
Policy BE3 – Conservation of the Historic Built Environment: 
 

PROVISION WILL BE MADE TO ENSURE THAT THE CHARACTER AND 
APPEARANCE OF THE HISTORIC BUILT ENVIRONMENT IS PROTECTED AND/OR 
ENHANCED.  IN PARTICULAR: 
 
• LISTED BUILDINGS WILL BE PROTECTED FROM DEMOLITION, 

INAPPROPRIATE ALTERATION OR OTHER ADVERSE CHANGE TO THEIR 
CHARACTER OR SETTING; 

• CONSERVATION AREAS AND THEIR SETTINGS WILL BE PROTECTED FROM 
DEVELOPMENT DAMAGING TO THEIR CHARACTER. 

 
South Kesteven Local Plan 
 
Policy C9 – Buildings in Conservation Areas: 
 

PROPOSALS TO DEMOLISH, OR PARTIALLY DEMOLISH, ANY BUILDING WHICH 
MAKES AN IMPORTANT CONTRIBUTION TO THE STREET SCENE, ENVIRONMENTAL 
QUALITY OR CHARACTER OF THE AREA WILL NOT NORMALLY BE PERMITTED; 
AND 
 
APPLICATIONS FOR PLANNING PERMISSION FOR DEVELOPMENT WILL BE 
CONSIDERED HAVING REGARD TO: 
 
i) THE EFFECT OF THE PROPOSAL ON THE CHARACTER AND APPEARANCE 

OF THE AREA; 
ii) THE APPROPRIATENESS OF THE PROPOSAL IN TERMS OF DESIGN, SCALE 

AND MATERIALS; AND 
iii) THE IMPACT OF ANY NEW USE ON THE AREA. 
 

 



Statutory Consultations 
 
Historic Buildings Advisor:  Comments awaited. 
 
Civic Society:  Comments awaited – notified 10 November 2005. 
 
Town Council:  Comments awaited – notified 10 November 2005. 
 
Representations as a result of publicity 
 
The application has been advertised in accordance with statutory requirements, the closing date for 
representations being 2 December 2005. 
 
At the time of writing, representations had been received from the following: 
 
1. The Occupier, Dean House, 1 Princes Road, Stamford. 
2. The Occupier, 3 Princes Road. 
3. The Occupier, 28 Princes Road. 
4. The Occupier, 2 Princes Road. 
5. The Occupier, Beverley House, New Cross Road. 
6. The Occupier, 34 Kings Road. 
7. The Occupier, 36 Kings Road. 
8. Messrs Michelsen, Cat Nab, 35 Kings Road. 
9. The Occupier, The Pingle, 33a Kings Road. 
10. L & B Gibson, 14 Princes Road. 
11. M Grimes, 2 Kings Road. 
12. Mrs J V S Simons, Cranleigh, New Cross Road. 
 
The issues raised are: 
 
a) Stamford has already met its domestic construction targets.  (3) 
 
b) Having established a conservation area it is important not to change major parts of it.  (1) 
 
c) Demolition of any building in conservation area completely against what that area was set 

up to achieve.  (1) 
 
d) Blackfriars a fine example of large early 1930’s villa standing in own grounds, retaining most 

of its original features and provides a backdrop for splendid example of Victorian decorative 
brickwork on end wall of adjoining terrace.  (1) 

 
e) An imposing structure that has been part of street scene for over 70 years.  Retention falls 

within Policy C9 of the Local Plan.  (1) 
 
f) Redevelopment of site not supported by reasoned justification.  (1) 
 
Planning Panel Comments 
 
To be determined by Committee. 

 



 
 
 
 
Conclusions 
 
The need for this application has only arisen due to the designation of the Northfields Conservation 
Area subsequent to the granting of planning permission for a terrace of six dwellings under 
S05/1086/69 and Members need to be mindful of that decision when considering this application. 
 
The only relevant issue on this application is the impact on the character and appearance of the 
newly designated conservation area. 
 
 
Summary of Reason(s) for Approval 
 
The proposal is in accordance with national and local policies as set out in Planning Policy 
Guidance Note PPG15 (Planning and the Historic Environment), Policy BE3 of the Lincolnshire 
Structure Plan (Deposit Draft - April 2004), Policy C9 of the South Kesteven Local Plan and the 
Northfields Conservation Area document.  The issues raised regarding character and appearance 
are material considerations but are not sufficient in this case to indicate against the proposal and to 
outweigh the policies referred to above. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   That subject to the comments of the Historic Buildings Advisor and no 
adverse comments as a result of publicity by the 2 December 2005, the development be Approved 
subject to condition(s) 
 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from 
the date of this permission.  

 
The reason(s) for the condition(s) is/are: 
 

1. Required to be imposed pursuant to section 18 of the Planning (Listed Buildings & 
Conservation Areas) Act 1990. 

 
 

 
 

*   *   *   *   *   * 
 
 

 



 
NU.1 S05/1378/35 Registration Date:  14-Oct-2005

 
Applicant Mr T Lepley, South Kesteven District Council Council Offices, St. Peters 

Hill, Grantham, NG31 6PZ 
Agent  
Proposal Multi-storey car park 
Location Welham Street, Grantham 

 
Site Details 
Parish(es) 
 

 
Grantham 
Unclassified road 
Radon Area - Protection required 
Airfield Zone - No consultation required 
Drainage - Lincs 
EA: Flood Risk Zone 2/3 (new bld only) 

 
REPORT 

 
The Site and its Surroundings 
 
The site is located to the north of St Catherine’s Road and the west of Welham Street, approximately 
100m to the east of the Council Offices.  Immediately to the west of the site are the Cinema and the 
Health Centre and to the north of the site are residential properties fronting Grove End Road and 
some small business premises.  All but 2 of the properties on St Catherine’s Road that face the site are 
used for commercial, business or office purposes. 
 
Members will recall that planning permission is in place, and work has commenced on site, for the 
erection of residential apartments to the east of the site, on the former tyre garage site. 
 
The site is currently used for surface level car parking (pay and display) and measures 
approximately 140m by 110m.  Vehicular access into the site is gained directly from Welham 
Street, with pedestrian access points onto Grove End Road, St Catherine’s Road and the private 
road to the rear of the Health Centre. 
 
Site History 
 
None 
 
The Proposal 
 
Outline consent is sought for the provision of a multi-storey car park on the site.  Obviously the 
principle of a car park on this site is established by the current use.  This application seeks consent, 
in principle, for the creation of a multi-storey car park on the site. 
 
Only the siting, access and landscaping are asked to be considered as part of the application 
although some elevation details have been provided for indicative purposes.  The drawings show a 
poor and dated potential design and, for the avoidance of doubt, will not form part of the application 
if an outline planning permission is forthcoming. 
 
It is considered that, in this location of mixed uses, the provision of a multi-storey car park would be 
acceptable but would have to be suitably and sensitively designed in order to enhance this (current) 

 



open area rather than impacting on the surrounding properties in terms of height, proximity and 
design. 
 
The north end of the building would be close to the adjoining residential properties on Grove End 
Road and would have an adverse impact on those properties if this location was fixed.  It is 
considered that, if Members are minded to approve the application, the consideration of siting is 
omitted at this stage. 
 
Policy Considerations 
 
Policy T2 – allows for the development of town centre car parks providing there is no loss of car 
parking or unless an alternative provision, with at least the same amount of car parking is provided 
elsewhere. 
 
Policy EN1 – allows for development proposals that (inter alia) incorporate appropriate 
landscaping, reflect the general character and appearance of the area through layout, siting, design 
and materials and development where the highway system can adequately and safely 
accommodate the volume and nature of traffic likely to be generated. 
 
Statutory Consultations 
 
Local Highway Authority:  Comments awaited on the updated Transport Assessment (TA). 
 
Environment Agency:  Comments awaited on the submitted Flood Risk Assessment (FRA). 
 
Community Archaeologist:  Request standard condition W8 on any approval. 
 
Representations as a result of publicity 
 
The application has been advertised in accordance with established procedures and 
representations have been received from the following: 
 
1. A W Beecroft, Parts Export Ltd, Welham Street. 
2. T Patrick on behalf of Lincolnshire Primary Care Trust. 
3. A Clipsham, 3 Grove End Road. 
4. R Allsop, 3 Grove End Road. 
5. H Robinson & M Smith, 23 St Catherine’s Road. 
6. D Johnson, 5 Grove End Road. 
7. Mrs J Coates, 2 Grove End Road. 
8. S J Eades, 6 Grove End Road. 
9. L Martin & D Parker, 60 Grove End Road. 
 
The following issues have been raised: 
 
a) Impact on deliveries to adjacent business, possible road blockages. 
 
b) Proximity of development to adjacent premises. 
 
c) Health and safety compliance during construction. 
 
d) Loss of parking during construction. 
 
e) At odds with the objectives for the LDF. 
 

 



f) No history of high-rise development on this site. 
 
g) Loss of existing trees. 
 
h) Impact on neighbouring dwelling – overlooking, loss of privacy, loss of light. 
 
i) Increase in levels of pollution and possible structural damage. 
 
j) Possible flooding due to reduced ground levels. 
 
k) Increase in anti-social behaviour. 
 
l) Highway safety. 
 
m) Inappropriate and unsightly design – potential eyesore. 
 
n) Control over hours of opening? 
 
o) Should be limited in height – 2 storeys. 
 
p) Loss of right of way. 
 
q) Light pollution. 
 
r) Provision of security cameras, litter bins etc. 
 
s) Loss of re-cycling facility. 
 
Planning Panel Comments 
 
8 November 2005 – The application be determined by the Development Control Committee. 
 
Applicants Submissions 
 
None 
 
Conclusions 
 
It is clear that this site has a long established use as a public car park and the principle of development 
is therefore not in question. The tow key issues that need to be carefully considered relate to the 
impact on adjacent and nearby residential properties and the overall design/external appearance of the 
building. Members will be aware that the site immediately abuts a residential property on Grove End 
Road. This property is located directly north of the proposal and it is therefore necessary to carefully 
consider the impact on the living conditions of the occupiers of this dwelling as the proposal may well 
result in significant overshadowing for large parts of the day. This matter is a material planning 
consideration and should Members be sufficiently concerned about this issue then it is possible to 
impose a condition that either limits the height of the structure in this particular location or to require 
a degree of separation between the proposal and the dwelling. 
 
Whilst external appearance is asked to be reserved for subsequent approval it is appropriate to 
consider design and this is inextricably linked to the impact on nearby residents. There is clearly an 
opportunity here to provide a much needed centralised car parking facility whilst at the same time 
providing a structure that demonstrate a high degree of architectural flair. All too often car park 

 



design is bland and are strictly functional in their appearance. Such designs have been adopted 
through the ages from the 1960’s onwards. However, there are a number of good examples where 
the design of the structure has made a positive contribution the character and appearance of the 
area adding positively to the built form of towns and cities. It is considered that this site occupies a 
prominent position within Grantham and as it will function as the primary car parking destination for 
the town Members should ensure that the design makes a positive contribution to the area as a 
whole. 
 
The proposal is in accordance with local policies as set out in Policies T2 and EN1 of the South 
Kesteven Local Plan.  The issues relating to design, impact, landscaping, highway safety, pollution, 
anti-social behaviour, flooding and height are material considerations but, subject to the conditions 
attached to this permission, are not sufficient in this case to indicate against the proposal and to 
outweigh the policies referred to above. 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   That subject to the omission of ‘siting’ from the outline proposal, and 
subject to no adverse comments based on the TA and FRA, the development be Approved subject 
to condition(s) 
 

1. Application for approval of reserved matters must be made not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this permission, and the development must be begun 
not later than whichever is the later of the following dates:  
(a) the expiration of five years from the date of this permission; or  
(b) the expiration of two years from the final approval of the reserved matters, or, in the case 
of approval on different dates, the final approval of the last such matter to be approved. 

2. The following matters are reserved for subsequent approval by the District Planning 
Authority and no development shall be carried out until these matters have been approved, 
viz. detailed drawings to a scale of not less than 1/100, showing the siting, design and 
external appearance of the building(s) including particulars of the materials to be used for 
external walls and roofs and the landscaping of the site. 

3. Prior to the use of the car park commencing a scheme of lighting and CCTV camera 
coverage shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority.  Only 
such scheme as may be approved shall be implemented and shall be fully operational at all 
times when the car park is open for public use. 

4. No development shall take place upon the application site until the applicant has secured 
the implementation of a programme of archaeological work, in accordance with a written 
scheme of investigation, which has been submitted by the applicant and approved by the 
District Planning Authority.  

 
The reason(s) for the condition(s) is/are: 
 

1. Required to be imposed pursuant to section 92 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 
2. The application was submitted in outline only and in accordance with Policy/ies T2 and EN1 

of the South Kesteven Local Plan. 
3. To provide adequate lighting surveillance and security in the interests of crime prevention 

and community safety (EN1). 
4. To ensure that satisfactory provision is made for the evaluation, investigation, preservation 

(in situ where necessary) and recording of any possible archaeological remains on the site 
and in accordance with Policy/ies EN1 of the South Kesteven Local Plan. 

 

 



 
 
 
Note(s) to Applicant 

1. You are advised that the application site falls within an area which requires protection from 
Radon. You are advised to contact the District Council's Building Control Services to 
ascertain the level of protection required, and whether geological assessment is necessary. 

 
 

*   *   *   *   *   * 
 
 

 



 
NR.1 S05/1358/22 Registration Date:  11-Oct-2005

 
Applicant Vishal Properties Ltd C/o Agent 
Agent Armstrong Burton Planning Milford House, 260, Lichfield Road, Sutton 

Coldfield, B74 2UH 
Proposal Mixed use development (residential, offices, retail, nursery & 

workshops) 
Location Colsterworth Industrial Estate, Colsterworth 

 
Site Details 
Parish(es) 
 

 
Colsterworth 
Public footpath crosses site - FP1 
Public footpath abuts site 
B Class Road 
Demolition of any building - BR1 
Radon Area - Protection required 
Area of special control for adverts 
E7 Employment - rural areas 
EN3 Area of great landscape value 
Airfield Zone - No consultation required 
TPO affects site - TPO1 
Drainage - Lincs 
EA: Flood Risk Zone 2/3 (new bld only) 

 
REPORT 

 
The Site and its Surroundings 
 
The application site is the Colsterworth Industrial Estate and currently accommodates some small 
businesses but, in the main, comprises of redundant and derelict buildings, deposited waste and 
open concrete areas.  The overall site measures 4.5 measures. 
 
The site is located mid-way between Colsterworth and Woolsthorpe and is accessed from High 
Street, towards the very northern end of Colsterworth.  A long avenue of trees borders the access 
track and, either side of the entrance point into the main site area, are small areas of natural 
woodland. 
 
To the north of the access is a dwelling and to the south there is a parcel of land that has planning 
permission for the erection of 2 dwellings.  To the south of the site is a small pocket of isolated 
dwellings that are accessed via School Lane.  West of the site is the village centre/sports and social 
club and the associated playing field and to the north of the site are open fields. 
 
Public footpaths run to the north, east and west of the site and, although well screened from most 
directions the site and existing buildings are clearly visible from Old Post Lane to the west. 
 
Site History 
 
Until recently the overall site had been the subject of several planning permissions that related to 
the uses or extensions of the industrial buildings.  None of these permissions were relevant to the 
previous or current proposal other than in demonstrating that premises or businesses on the site 
were historically willing to expand or diversify. 
 

 



- 32 - 

Outline planning permission was sought earlier this year for a mixed development on the site to allow 
for residential properties, retail, offices and a children’s nursery.  This application was considered at 
the Development Control Committee on 17 May 2005 and, in the absence of any special justification, 
was refused for the following reason: 
 

The proposal seeks consent for the redevelopment of the Colsterworth Industrial Estate with 
a scheme for residential development, retail, offices and a nursery.  The site is located to 
the north of an area of sporadic housing but is separate from the general built form of 
Colsterworth village to the south east and Woolsthorpe village to the north west.  It is 
considered that the development of the site would create an unwarranted and incongruous 
satellite of development that would be contrary to the general form, character and 
appearance of the area.  For these reasons the proposal would be contrary to Policies H6 
and EN1 of the South Kesteven Local Plan, Lincolnshire Structure Plan Policy S4 and 
national planning guidance contained in PPG3. 
 

Since the refusal was issued the current applicants have been in discussions with the planning authority 
in order to resolve the previous concerns to allow for a re-submission application to be made.  An appeal 
has also been lodged against the reason for refusal referred to above. 
 
The Proposal 
 
The current application still seeks outline planning permission for the development of the site and 
still seeks a mix of proposals to include residential, offices retail, children’s nursery and workshop 
units. 
 
As part of this application the Agents have submitted substantial information in support of the 
application including a Planning Statement, Tree Survey, Transport Assessment and a 
comprehensive set of conceptual drawings to show how the development could be formed.  The 
siting of the buildings and the means of access are asked to be taken into account at this stage. 
 
Where previously there were concerns that the development would create a satellite of buildings 
that were divorced from the main body of either Colsterworth or Woolsthorpe by Colsterworth, the 
Agents have strived, through negotiation, to create a development that would forge links between 
the 2 settlements.  
 
Defined avenues are shown within the layout to open up views of listed buildings at either end 
(Colsterworth church and Woolsthorpe Manor) and to strengthen opportunities to pass through the 
development to access either settlement.  In addition better pedestrian links (not vehicular) will be 
made to the Sports Hall/Village Hall and playing field.  Part of the woodland area to the east of the 
site would be used as a children’s play area and remaining woodland areas would be used for 
recreational purposes. 
 
The residential development would be 2 and 3-storey, utilising mews-court development, corner 
buildings and focal buildings to add to the visual interest of the development. There is potential for a 
possible sculpture within the site to serve as a focal point and to reinforce the main pedestrian route 
through the site. 
 
The commercial units (incorporating all the other uses for the site) would be located between the 
woodland and the main dwelling areas to prevent commercial traffic passing through the residential 
part of the site.  Part of the commercial development will front onto the central, open heart of the 
development giving a good opportunity for a well-designed, modern building in this location that 
could also act as a focal point within the development. 
 

 



- 33 - 

It is acknowledged that the site is underused, poses problems from land contamination, and is not a 
‘good neighbour’ development in this edge of village location.  The redevelopment of the site, if 
done correctly, will serve as a good use of the site that, rather than forming a satellite of 
development, will reinforce a link between the 2 settlements that currently form this ‘local service 
centre’.  In addition, as the majority of the development will not impact on adjacent properties, listed 
buildings or distant views, there is scope for some modern architecture, fresh designs and 
innovating detail to enhance the development in its setting. 
 
Discussions are underway with the Agents concerning the provision of a Section 106 Agreement to 
allow for the provision of affordable housing, the provision and maintenance of the areas of public 
open space and the provision of public art. 
 
Policy Considerations 
 
National Policy 
 
PPS1 – Delivering Sustainable Development – PPS1 sets out the government’s broad aims and 
objectives on planning policy.  The key thread of this policy is the principle of sustainable 
development, the prudent use of natural resources and social cohesion and inclusion.  There are 
numerous definitions of sustainable development but the basic principles involve the re-use of 
previously developed sites, well related to the existing settlement and easily served by a range of 
transport choices for future occupants. 
 
Paragraph 5 of PPS1 states that planning should facilitate and promote sustainable and inclusive 
patterns of urban and rural development by (inter alia) contributing to sustainable economic 
development, ensuring the quality and character of existing communities is enhanced, ensuring 
high quality development through good and inclusive design, and the efficient use of resources, 
ensuring that development supports existing communities and contributes to the creation of safe, 
sustainable, liveable and mixed communities with good access to jobs and key services for all 
members of the community. 
 
Paragraph 29 of PPS1 states:  “In some circumstances, a planning authority may decide in 
reaching a decision to give different weight to social, environmental, resource or economic 
considerations.  Where this is the case, the reasons for doing so should be explicit and the 
consequences considered.” 
 
Members are reminded that there has been a previous refusal for a similar development on this 
site.  The current application is recommended for approval, for the reasons given in the ‘Proposal’ 
section and ‘Conclusion’ of this report, and for these reasons it is considered that the advice offered 
in PPS1 has been followed. 
 
PPG13 – Transport.  As with PPS1 and PPG3 the main thrust of this guidance relates to the 
promotion of developments that are in well served sustainable locations. 
 
PPG3 – Housing – With reference to creating sustainable residential environments paragraph 46 
of the PPG states:  ‘To promote more sustainable residential environments, both within and outside 
existing urban areas, local planning authorities should promote: 
 

• Development that is linked to public transport. 
• Mixed use development. 
• A greener residential environment. 
• Greater emphasis on quality and designing places for people. 
• The most efficient use of land. 

 

 



- 34 - 

But goes on in, paragraph 58, to state that local planning authorities should avoid developments 
that make inefficient use of land (those of less than 30 dwellings per hectare net).  The most 
relevant part of the PPG that relates to the proposed development can be found in paragraphs 69 
and 70 when reference is made to ‘Rural Housing – Village Expansion and Infill’ as below: 
 

69. In terms of overall housing provision, only a limited amount of housing can be 
expected to be accommodated in expanded villages.  Whilst occasionally a 
village could be the basis for a new settlement where, for example, the 
development accords with the policy of developing around major nodes in 
transport corridors, most proposals for additional housing will involve infill 
development or peripheral expansion. 

 
70. Villages will only be suitable locations for accommodating significant additional 

housing where: 
 

 It can be demonstrated that additional housing will support local services, 
such as schools or shops, which could become unviable without some 
modest growth.  This may particularly be the case where the village has been 
identified as a local service centre in the development plan; 

 Additional houses are needed to meet local needs, such as affordable 
housing, which will help secure a mixed and balanced community (see 
Annex B); and 

 The development can be designed sympathetically and laid out in keeping 
with the character of the village using such techniques as village design 
statements. 

 
PPG7 – Sustainable Development in Rural Areas – States in paragraph 3 that, with reference to 
the location of development away from larger urban areas, ‘planning authorities should focus most 
new development in or near to local service centres where employment, housing (including 
affordable housing), services and other facilities can be provided close together.  This should help 
to ensure these facilities are served by public transport and provide improved opportunities for 
access by walking and cycling.  These centres (which might be a country town, a single large 
village or a group of villages) should be identified in the development plan as the preferred location 
for such development. 
 
Regional Spatial Strategy for the East Midlands – RSS8.  The regional spatial strategy sets the 
overall housing requirement for the County. 
 
Lincolnshire Structure Plan 
 
Lincolnshire Structure Plan Policy S4 – Rural Communities – States that in allocating land for 
such development (inter alia) ‘the impact of the development on the size and character of the 
settlement’ should be assessed. 
 
Lincolnshire Structure Plan Policy H3 – Density of New Housing Development – Requires 
new housing development in the county to meet an average of 30 dwellings per hectare in 
accordance with the advice given in PPG3. 
 
Revised deposit draft Lincolnshire Structure Plan 2005.  This plan has now been through the 
Examination in Public and is close to formal adoption.  Once adopted it will form part of the formal 
development plan but due to the advanced stage it is currently at, it can be given significant weight.  
As with all contemporary planning documents the promotion of sustainable development is the 
central plank of the revised Structure Plan.  The Structure Plan translates the regional strategic 
housing requirement into district allocations.  As Members will be aware South Kesteven’s 

 



- 35 - 

allocation has been cut to approximately 9,200, a figure which has largely been accommodated in 
commitments and urban capacity sites.  The revised Structure Plan identifies the settlement 
hierarchy for the County and classifies The Deepings as a small town. 
 
South Kesteven Local Plan 
 
Policy H6 – Housing – Allows for small groups of dwellings within villages providing they do not 
impact on the form, character and setting of the setting of the settlement and on the community and 
its local environment, and providing that it does not extend isolated groups of houses and 
consolidate or extend sporadic or linear development. 
 
Policy EN1 – Protection and Enhancement of the Environment – In respect of buildings this 
policy seeks to ensure that the development reflects the general character of the area through 
layout, siting, design and materials. 
 
Policy E11 – Safeguarding Industrial Sites – Ensures that permission will not be granted for the 
use of industrial sites for other purposes unless: 
 

• There are ample suitable sites or buildings available elsewhere in the locality; 
• The existing site produces unacceptable traffic or environmental problems that would be 

significantly alleviated by a change of use; or 
• There is no demand for the existing use. 

 
Policy E11 would appear to be satisfied by the proposal as the site is underused, in disrepair and 
there has been little interest in future developments on the site.  The availability of suitable sites 
elsewhere has not been tested as part of the proposal but the Local Plan does identify other 
industrial sites and allocations within the Colsterworth area, primarily adjacent to the A1 to benefit 
from the communication links. 
 
The previous application was not considered acceptable as it was considered that it would have 
created a satellite of development away from the established form of the adjacent villages that 
would have been contrary to the general form, character and layout of the area.  It is considered 
that these reasons for refusal have been addressed in this proposal in light of the above policy 
guidance and, on that basis, the development is in accordance with the policies referred to above. 
 
Interim Housing Policy – This Authority adopted the IHP on 6 June 2005, after the previous 
application was refused, and the current application has to be considered in light of this policy.  As 
the joint settlements of Colsterworth and Woolsthorpe by Colsterworth are classed as a Local 
Service Centre the policy would support proposals for new residential development on sites which 
were previously developed. 
 
Statutory Consultations 
 
Parish Council: 
 

“This Parish Council are very concerned at the magnitude of this proposal and 
detailed below are their representations: 
 
1. The existing services in the village are unable to cope with an increase of this size.  
Problems are being experienced with our already overloaded sewage system as detailed in 
previous correspondence. 
 
2. The following resources would be unable to handle a substantial increase in the 
population: 

 



- 36 - 

 
Village School – already operating at full capacity. 
Medical Services – already overloaded. 
Community Policing – unable to handle existing problems due to inadequate local staffing 
levels. 
 
3. Existing roads are far too narrow and already congested and would not be able to 
handle any increased traffic. 
 
Problems would occur with access to existing facilities within the village roads: 
 
i) Access to churchyard on School Lane particularly for funerals would be even more 
restricted. 
 
ii) Emergency services would have even more difficulty with increased traffic and 
even more on street parking when attending emergencies which could endanger the 
whole community. 
 
iii) The proposed plans for parking on and around the new proposals are totally 
inadequate and would lead to even more traffic congestion. 
 
It would be appreciated if you would confirm in writing that this outline planning application 
will be considered by the full District Council.” 
 

Local Highway Authority:  Have requested amendments to the layout. 
 
Community Archaeologist:  No objections. 
 
Environment Agency:  Comments awaited on submitted FRA. 
 
English Nature:  Request conditions on any approval relating to breeding birds and bats. 
 
East Midlands Development Agency (EMDA) – Recommends the refusal of the application for the 
following reasons: 
 

“The need for strategically located and well serviced employment sites in the Grantham 
area is well documented in various policies and studies.  The Lincolnshire Employment 
Sites and Premises Study (LESPS) highlights a shortage of good, serviced land in the south 
west of the county particularly in Grantham and Stamford. 
 
LESPS notes there is a need for a second high quality business park in Lincolnshire and 
also that there is an unmet demand for small units in the Grantham area, which is not likely 
to be met by the private sector. 
 
The Regional Employment Land Priorities Study (RELPS) emphasises the need to ensure 
that there is adequate supply of land of the right quantity and quality for employment 
development (B1, B2 and B8) in sustainable locations.  RELPS states that in the Welland 
Sub-Regional Strategic Partnership area there will be a need to ensure that pressure for 
residential development of brownfield sites does not result in under provision for 
employment in sustainable locations. 
 
The RES points out that there is a perceived undersupply of site provision for employment 
land in the south of the Eastern Sub-area.  The RES is currently going through a review 
process.  The RES Consultation Document notes as a priority action that viable and 

 



- 37 - 

attractive sites for employment need to be safeguarded within planning frameworks – any 
decisions to approve losses of such sites must demonstrate that this will not be detrimental 
to the overall supply and quality of employment land. 
 
emda have received comments from the Lincolnshire Enterprise Sub Regional Strategic 
Partnership.  The Partnership have noted that there is a major problem in South Kesteven 
caused by pressure from the Peterborough Growth Area.  This problem should not be 
alleviated by allowing employment land to be used for residential and retail uses. 
 
Therefore, emda does not support this application and recommends refusal.” 
 

East Midlands Regional Assembly: 
 

“The site is allocated within the local plan for employment purposes.  RSS8 Policy 22 
– Regional Policies for Employment Land may assist in guiding departure procedures 
and decision making. 
 
The sites does appear to be somewhat isolated in relation to other residential parts of 
Colsterworth, which may be appropriate for the allocated employment uses but may not 
assist with community integration if developed for residential purposes.  The fact that the 
land is to be re-used has a degree of affinity with RSS8 Policy 2 – Locational Priorities for 
Development. 
 
It is noted that Colsterworth is defined as a Local Service Centre Village and has 
reasonable public transport services, Policy 3 – Sustainability Criteria, refers. 
 
RSS8 Policy 34 – Regional Priorities for Strategic River Corridors is a relevant consideration 
in the determination of this application. 
 
The possible inclusion of an affordable housing element may be part guided by RSS8 
Pollicy 18 – Regional Priorities for Affordable Housing. 
 
Finally, the indicative layout, with its unarticulated building blocks and heavily engineered 
highway layout would not seem to represent a form of development akin to the traditional 
form of vernacular architecture within the village; the fact that there has been substantial 
estate development in the 1960’s and 1970’s is appreciated.  Nevertheless, Policies 31 and 
Policy 4 of the Regional Spatial Strategy look to new development to take account of local 
natural and historic character.” 
 

The National Trust:  Recommends the refusal of the application for the following reasons: 
 

“The following issues are of particular concern in the new proposal: 
 
1. The proposed boulevard linking Woolsthorpe Manor and Colsterworth Church. 
 
2. The three storey housing proposed on the site. 
 
3. Trees in the landscape. 
 
1. Proposed boulevard linking Woolsthorpe Manor and Colsterworth Church. 
 
The proposed boulevard, which purports to link Woolsthorpe Manor and 
Colsterworth Church, would completely destroy the special historic significance of 
Woolsthorpe Manor and its ‘isolated rural modesty’.  It is also considered that it fails 

 



- 38 - 

to respect either the setting of Woolsthorpe Manor or the landscape character of the 
wider area. 
 
2. Proposed three storey housing. 
 
The National Trust is concerned over the height of the proposed three storey dwellings and 
their impact in the rural landscape.  Furthermore their height would have an adverse visual 
impact upon the setting of Woolsthorpe Manor. 
 
3. Trees in the landscape. 
 
The National Trust is concerned about the disparity between the applicant’s plans and the 
3D-views in the supporting documentation; and the lack of clarity regarding the location and 
retention of trees.  Both of these factors make it difficult to gain a true picture of the final 
treescape around the across the development, together with the impact of how the 
development then sits within the wider landscape. 
 
In respect of these three issues it is the Trust’s view that the proposals are contrary to many 
policies in the Development Plan, and in particular to: 
 

o RSS – Policies 4, 27 and 31. 
o Lincolnshire Structure Plan – Policies S1 NE4 and BE3. 
o South Kesteven Local Plan – Policies H7, EN1, EN3, EN9 and C9. 

 
In conclusion the National Trust considers that application S05/1358 does not 
represent a suitable form of development for the site, is contrary to the Development 
Plan, and in particular would have a serious adverse impact upon the special 
landscape and historic environment features of the surrounding area.  Accordingly it 
is requested that the application be refused.” 
 

Representations as a result of publicity 
 
The application has been advertised in accordance with established procedures and, at the time of 
drafting this report, comments had been received from the following: 
 
1. C Russell & M Winn, 43 Newton Way, Colsterworth. 
2. S Morgan, 26 School Lane. 
3. Mr & Mrs Rossiter, Pheasant Cottage, School Lane. 
4. Mrs R Hollis, Hospital Farm, 37 Newton Way. 
5. Dr D McCann, School House, 9a School Lane. 
 
The following issues were raised: 
 
a) The number of dwellings is not specified – impact on services. 
 
b) Dense, urban style development – not in keeping with village vernacular. 
 
c) Link between villages is unnecessary. 
 
d) Increase in traffic, highway safety issues, increased on-site parking. 
 
e) Could be an asset if developed correctly. 
 
f) Overdevelopment, out of scale and character. 

 



- 39 - 

 
g) Need for the commercial development. 
 
h) Loss of existing footpaths and landscaping/trees. 
 
i) Concern over access via School Lane. 
 
j) Limited public transport facilities. 
 
k) Drainage issues and contaminated land. 
 
Planning Panel Comments 
 
16 November 2005 – That the application be determined by the Development Control Committee. 
 
Applicants Submissions 
 
Various documentation was submitted as part of the planning application.  Sections 5 and 6 of the 
submitted Planning Statement present the case for the application and are as follows: 
 

“5. Assessment of Development Proposed 
 
5.1 The determination of the application is to be in accordance with the 
Development Plan (Regional Spatial Strategy, Lincolnshire Structure Plan and South 
Kesteven Local Plan) unless material considerations (such as Supplementary 
Planning Guidance) indicate otherwise. 
 
* Principle of development. 
* Layout/design/conservation issues. 
* Traffic impact/access. 
* Environmental issues. 
* Section 106 aspects. 
 
5.3 These issues are considered in turn below. 
 
Principle of Development 
 
5.4 PPS1, PPG3 and the Development Plan envisage the provision of housing and 
mixed use development on previously developed land (for example Structure Plan 
Policy H2).  The definition of previously developed land is set out in Annex C to 
PPG3.  There can be no doubt that this site falls within the definition of previously 
developed land. 
 
5.5 In terms of development at Colsterworth, the local authority has identified the 
expanded village as a local service centre.  This is set out in adopted SPG.  RSS 
Policy 6 allows appropriate development in locations such as Colsterworth, in 
addition to Structure Plan Policy 11 and Local Plan Policy H6.  In principle therefore, 
Colsterworth is an appropriate location for new development. 
 
5.6 In relation to the site itself, previous concerns have been expressed with 
regard to the location of the site and in particular the potential for housing to become 
a satellite form of development. 
 

 



- 40 - 

5.7 As set out in section 3 of this statement, significant pre-application work has 
been undertaken in order to fully appraise the location of the site, its relationship to 
shops, services and facilities in the settlement, the ability to improve those linkages 
and the consequence of development on the general form and pattern of 
Colsterworth.  These aspects are further advanced in the accompanying Design 
Statement. 
 
5.8 Given that the site adjoins existing housing and commercial facilities in the 
settlement, and extend up to and adjoins the village hall, sports centre and playing 
fields, the physical location of the site could allow for new uses without constituting 
a satellite form of development.  This is however subject to the disposition of land 
uses, site layout and the potential upgrading of linkages from the site to other 
facilities in Colsterworth. 
 
5.9 The disposition of land uses, and general development form is detailed in the 
Design Statement as summarised later in this statement.  In terms of linkages, it is 
important to note that existing footpaths are proposed for upgrading and policing.  
This includes significant improvements in the linkages to the village hall, sports 
centre and playing fields to allow better integration of these facilities into the historic 
core of Colsterworth.  This is a distinct advantage of these proposals. 
 
5.10 A key consideration in respect of the principle of development relates to the 
loss of former employment uses.  In this regard, it is to be noted that the site is 
largely disused.  It has been in decline for a number of years and its size not well 
suited to the local employment market. 
 
5.11 Correspondence from Humberts Chartered Surveyors confirms these matters.  
This states that Humberts have been involved in marketing the site since the mid 
1990’s for employment purposes without success.  Humberts consider the site to 
perform poorly compared to other industrial/commercial locations in the area.  The 
site is considered to have come to the end of its useful life and requires wholesale 
refurbishment or redevelopment. 
 
5.12 It is noted that the committee report in respect of the earlier redevelopment 
proposals (reference S05/0360/22) states that Local Plan Policy E11 would appear to 
be satisfied by the proposal as the site is underused, in disrepair and there has been 
little interest in future development on the site. 
 
5.13 In summary therefore, the principle of development is considered acceptable 
given that the site constitutes previously developed land, Colsterworth in an 
appropriate location for new development given its sustainability credentials as 
confirmed in SPG, the general layout (as detailed below) and wider improvements 
address concerns on a satellite form of development whilst the loss of employment 
land is considered acceptable. 
 
5.14 In terms of the scale of development no specific number of houses/apartments 
is put forward at this stage.  Access and siting is put forward for approval.  Local 
Plan Policy H6 allows only limited housing in rural locations however PPG3 sets out 
minimum density requirements (paragraph 58) and emerging Structure Plan Policy 
H3 provides similar requirements.  It is envisaged that the density will accord with 
these provisions. 
 
Layout/Design/Conservation Issues 
 

 



- 41 - 

5.15 The Design Statement prepared by Nicol Thomas Architects refers to the 
design quality of the development proposals. 
 
5.16 The Design Statement states the importance of physical linkages and visual 
linkages to the heart of Colsterworth.  The proposed layout sets out to address this 
by utilising School Lane as a pedestrian route and introduction of the tree lined 
boulevard terminating at the School Lane entrance. 
 
5.17 The Design Statement goes on to state the location of the commercial area 
adds to the sustainability of the site and assist in linking the site with the wider 
village. 
 
5.18 In summary the Design Statement confirms how the provisions of By Design 
are met with regard to continuity and enclosure, quality and public realm, ease of 
movement, legibility and diversity. 
 
5.19 The proposals are influenced by historical and contextual reference.  It is to be 
noted that the master plan identifies a tree lined boulevard providing visual linkages 
between the listed Woolsthorpe Manor and the church in Colsterworth.  Views of both 
are apparent from within the site given the gradient changes across the area.  The 
proposed tree lined boulevard will enhance these views. 
 
5.20 The proposals have had regard to the Lincolnshire Design Guide, adopted at 
Supplementary Planning Guidance, in addition to By Design. 
 
5.21 For these reasons the proposals are a high quality layout, paying due regard 
to local context and conservation aspects.  The proposals are considered to accord 
with Development Plan Policy 1 (RSS), Policy S4 (Structure Plan) and Policies H6 and 
EN1 of the Local Plan and positively respond to the advice set out in the Lincolnshire 
Design Guide and By Design. 
 
Traffic Impact/Access 
 
5.22 The application is accompanied by a Transport Assessment prepared by 
David Tucker Associates.  This addresses existing traffic conditions, site 
accessibility, site layout and parking and appraisal and mitigation of development 
impact. 
 
5.23 In overall terms, the Transport Assessment confirms that the proposals will 
not compromise highway.  There is no pattern of incidents or highway safety 
concerns.  Colsterworth offers alternatives to the private car.  Existing access is 
improved and the site layout is appropriate. 
 
Environmental Issues 
 
5.24 At pre-application stage the extent of supporting information/surveys were 
scoped out with officers of the local authority. 
 
5.25 An Arboricultural assessment has been prepared to assess the quality of the 
woodland area and trees generally and assess the development impact of the 
submitted proposals.  The report states that the trees provide visual amenity and 
species vary in their condition and age but would nevertheless provide a mature 
setting for the new buildings.  New tree planting will broaden the age range of trees.  

 



- 42 - 

The introduction of a children’s play area will not adversely affect the amenity of the 
woodland area. 
 
5.26 An ecological survey has also been carried out to establish the habitat value 
of the site, and propose mitigation as necessary.  The report notes that although the 
site provides some habitats, they are not rare or scarce in Lincolnshire and the UK.  
The only potential ecological constraints arise from nesting birds and roosting bats. 
 
5.27 In respect of ground contamination, an intrusive report is currently underway 
however the applicant is content with a condition requiring the formal submission of 
a site investigation report and mitigation measures.  This is in accordance with the 
earlier application. 
 
5.28 Finally consideration has been given to flooding issues.  It is noted that a 
Flood Risk Assessment was submitted in support of the previous application 
S05/0360/22.  The environment agency concluded that conditions be attached to any 
planning permission in respect of flood risk and raised no objection to the principle 
of the site coming forward.  The applicant is content to accept similar conditions in 
respect of these proposals. 
 
5.29 In overall terms therefore, there are no environmental issues on the site that 
would indicate that the development proposed should not come forward. 
 
Section 106 Aspects 
 
5.30 At pre-application stage, the extent of Section 106 requirements was 
discussed with officers of the local authority. 
 
5.31 It was confirmed that potential matters to be addressed by a Section 106 
agreement would relate to the provision of affordable housing, public open space 
and education contributions.  Relevant consultees at South Kesteven District Council 
and Lincolnshire County Council have been consulted at pre-application stage with a 
view to agreeing at the earliest opportunity heads of terms for the legal agreement.  
Confirmation of requirements is awaited from the consultees at the time of 
application submission. 
 
5.32 In respect of affordable housing, the applicant is committed to this 
requirement in accordance with Local Plan Policy, PPG3 and Circular 06/98. 
 
5.33 In respect of public open space, the Arboricultural assessment justifies that a 
small clearing can be provided in the woodland area to provide a children’s play 
facility.  This was discussed at pre-application stage with planning officers of the 
local authority.  Should this area be insufficient to meet the demands arising from the 
development proposed, the applicant will consider a commuted payment towards 
improving off site open space facilities. 
 
5.34 In respect of education contributions, the applicant is committed to 
reasonable requirement in accordance with Circular 05/05. 
 
5.35 It is expected that heads of terms can be agreed and an agreement prepared in 
advance of the application being reported to Planning Committee. 
 
6. Conclusions 
 

 



- 43 - 

6.1 These proposals have been prepared having regard to Development Plan 
Policy and Supplementary Planning Guidance, in addition to National Planning 
Policy. 
 
6.2 The submission follows detailed pre-application work.  The revised 
application, following a previous refusal of planning permission is a radical approach 
with new applicant and new advisors in respect of the site. 
 
6.3 The application is submitted in outline format however substantial supporting 
documents have been provided in respect of planning policy considerations, design 
and layout, traffic impact, environmental issues and section 106 aspects. 
 
6.4 The conclusion reached is that the application is appropriate in all respects. 
 
6.5 The proposals have been assessed against the Development Plan policy 
including the Regional Spatial Strategy, Structure Plan and Local Plan.  The 
proposals are considered to accord with the provisions of the Development Plan.  No 
material considerations have been identified to outweigh the Development Plan.  On 
this basis Armstrong Burton Planning can commend the application to officers and 
Planning Committee.” 
 

Conclusions 
 
Members need to consider the proposal against contemporary planning policy.  The Local 
Plan is over 10 years old and is not necessarily reflective of current planning policy.  When 
weighing up the relative merits of each applicable policy the 2004 act emphasises that 
where conflict exists between plan policies, that difference must be resolved in favour of the 
policies most recently adopted, i.e. current policies need to be given more weight and take 
precedence. 
 
However, it is stated in PPG3 that when considering development proposals a sequential 
approach to site selection should be made, bringing forward brownfield sites in advance of 
any greenfield sites.  As this site is clearly a brownfield site then there is clear policy 
support for the proposal and it is in line with contemporary planning policy. 
 
Notwithstanding the fact that a recent application for a similar development was refused in 
May this year it is considered that sufficient justification has been provided with this 
application, in policy terms and based on the design and layout of the site, to now offer 
support to the proposal.  The Regional Spatial Strategy has set the housing figure for the 
county.  Members will be fully aware that South Kesteven’s slice of that county figure was 
greatly reduced to a point where the housing requirement may well be surpassed by the 
granting of this consent together with outstanding commitments within the District. 
 
33% of the total number of houses developed on the site will be affordable housing units. 
 
 
Summary of Reason(s) for Approval 
 
The proposal is in accordance with national and local policies as set out in Planning Policy 
Guidance Notes 1, 3 and 13, Policies S4 and H3 of the Lincolnshire Structure Plan and Policies H6 
and EN1 of the South Kesteven Local Plan.  The issues relating to overdevelopment, the style and 
form of the development, highway safety, landscaping, drainage, contamination and the impact on 
village facilities are material considerations but, subject to the conditions attached to this 

 



- 44 - 

permission, are not sufficient in this case to indicate against the proposal and to outweigh the 
policies referred to above. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   Subject to the resolution of the highway issues and subject to the 
completion of a Section 106 Agreement, the development be permitted subject to a comprehensive 
list of conditions relating to the ‘master-planning’ of the site, phasing (if appicable), de-
contamination and landscaping alongside the ‘standard’ outline planning conditions. 
 
 
Note(s) to Applicant 

1. You are advised that the application site falls within an area which requires protection from 
Radon. You are advised to contact the District Council's Building Control Services to 
ascertain the level of protection required, and whether geological assessment is necessary. 

 
 

*   *   *   *   *   * 
 
 
 

 



AGENDA ITEM   
 
 

Report No:  PLA.543 
 
 
DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE 
 
06  DECEMBER  2005  
 
 
 
REPORT BY DEVELOPMENT CONTROL SERVICES MANAGER 
 
 
Information relating to development control and other planning activity 
 
 
 
TABLE 1 Applications not determined within 8 weeks 
 
This table, broken down into the four Development Control Zones, lists those applications 
which have not been determined within the recommended 8 week time period.  These 
applications are listed by application number, registration date, applicant, proposal and 
location. 
 
The number of applications listed, 52 in total, is a slight decrease since the previous 
Committee (55 applications listed). 
 
 
TABLE 2 Applications dealt with under delegated powers 
 from 24 October – 11 November 2005 
 
This table lists those applications upon which decisions have been made under the 
Powers of the Council Exercisable by Officers (as adopted by the District Council on 12 
April 1990), and are set out on Pages 65-67 of the Council Yearbook.  Decisions 
authorised by the Planning Panel are identified. 
 
 
TABLE 3 Planning Appeals Update 
 
This table lists outstanding appeals together with newly submitted appeals and decisions 
received during the last month. 
 
 

Agenda Item 9 



Table 1 / Page 1 

TABLE 1 
DEVELOPMENT CONTROL SERVICES 
 
 
Applications not determined within the 8 week statutory period 
 
Report No:  16/05 
Date Prepared:  21 November 2005 
No of applications over 8 weeks:  52 
 
 
NORTH  RURAL 
 
 
 
S05/0979/21/KJC 
 
Date registered: 
18-Jul-2005 
No of days:  126 

A  Swallow 
Create vehicular access, alter existing access to garage & re-
roof garage 
34, Main Street, Claypole 
Reason for non-determination: 
Awaiting listed building consent application 
 

 
S05/1030/57/KJC 
 
Date registered: 
27-Jul-2005 
No of days:  117 

Mr M  Dossa 
Extension to provide additional bedrooms 
The Olde Barn Hotel, Toll Bar Road, Marston 
Reason for non-determination: 
6 month holding objection from Highways Agency 
 

 
S05/1108/55/MH 
 
Date registered: 
11-Aug-2005 
No of days:  102 

Ablehomes Ltd 
Erection of three bungalows 
R/o Farbrooke, Main Road, Long Bennington 
Reason for non-determination: 
Awaiting drainage details 
 

 
 
 
NORTH  URBAN 
 
 
S01/0426/54/RWE 
 
Date registered: 
05-Apr-2001 
No of days:  1691 

Mr R D  Stafford 
Residential development (renewal) 
Adjacent Bridge End Grove, Grantham 
Reason for non-determination: 
Awaiting details of flood prevention measures 
 

 
S02/0154/35/RWE 
 
Date registered: 
05-Feb-2002 
No of days:  1385 

Buckminster Estate & Jenkinson Trust 
Residential development, local centre, school, open space, 
roads and bridge 
Poplar Farm, Barrowby Road, Grantham 
Reason for non-determination: 
Referred to the Secretary of State 
 

 

 



Table 1 / Page 2 

S02/0996/35/RWE 
 
Date registered: 
23-Jul-2002 
No of days:  1217 

SKDC - Property Services 
Residential development 
Car Park, Watergate/Swinegate, Grantham 
Reason for non-determination: 
Deferred at applicant's request 
 

 
S03/0990/35/RWE 
 
Date registered: 
22-Jul-2003 
No of days:  853 

R  Elvin 
Erection of 27 flats 
R/o 98 & 99, Westgate, Grantham 
Reason for non-determination: 
Chairman/Vice Chairman to approve subject to S106 
agreement 
 

 
S03/1112/35/MH 
 
Date registered: 
14-Aug-2003 
No of days:  830 

Mr & Mrs D  Balderson 
Removal of outbuildings & erection of dwelling & garage 
R/o 191, Belton Lane, Grantham 
Reason for non-determination: 
Awaiting comments from Environment Agency regarding 
Flood Risk Assessment 
 

 
S03/1189/35/PJM 
 
Date registered: 
03-Sep-2003 
No of days:  810 

Clinton Cards Plc 
New illuminated fascia and projecting sign 
48a, High Street, Grantham 
Reason for non-determination: 
Awaiting further information 
 

 
S03/1190/35/PJM 
 
Date registered: 
03-Sep-2003 
No of days:  810 

Clinton Cards Plc 
New shop front 
48a, High Street, Grantham 
Reason for non-determination: 
Awaiting further information 
 

 
S03/LB/6083/35/PJM 
 
Date registered: 
03-Sep-2003 
No of days:  810 

Clinton Cards Plc 
New shopfront including illuminated fascia and projecting sign 
and removal of staircase 
48a, High Street, Grantham 
Reason for non-determination: 
Awaiting further information 
 

 
S04/1564/35/JT 
 
Date registered: 
13-Oct-2004 
No of days:  404 

Mr & Mrs A  Hodgson 
Change of use from C3 to C1 (dwelling to bed and breakfast) 
Manthorpe Lodge, 85, Manthorpe Road, Grantham 
Reason for non-determination: 
Awaiting amendments or withdrawal 
 

 
S04/1672/35/MH 
 
Date registered: 
03-Nov-2004 
No of days:  383 

Lindpet Properties 
Conversion of outbuilding to two mews cottages and erection 
of four flats 
Granby Mews, Conduit Lane, Grantham 
Reason for non-determination: 
Awaiting withdrawal pending new submission 
 

 



Table 1 / Page 3 

 
S04/LB/6309/35/MH 
 
Date registered: 
03-Nov-2004 
No of days:  383 

Lindpet Properties Ltd 
Conversion of outbuilding to two mews cottages 
Granby Mews, Conduit Lane, Grantham 
Reason for non-determination: 
Awaiting withdrawal pending new submission 
 

 
S05/0148/35/MH 
 
Date registered: 
04-Feb-2005 
No of days:  290 

Richard Elvin Properties 
Residential development (34 flats) 
R/o 98 & 99, Westgate, Grantham 
Reason for non-determination: 
Chairman/Vice Chairman to approve subject to S106 
agreement 
 

 
S05/0603/35/MH 
 
Date registered: 
29-Apr-2005 
No of days:  206 

Twyford Properties Ltd 
Residential development (10 dwellings) 
R/o 6 And 16, New Beacon Road, Grantham 
Reason for non-determination: 
Awaiting comments of Environment Agency regarding Flood 
Risk Assessment 
 

 
S05/0788/35/KJC 
 
Date registered: 
09-Jun-2005 
No of days:  165 

Ben  Stanley 
Fascia sign, swing sign and projecting box sign 
Dr Thirsty, 85, Westgate, Grantham 
Reason for non-determination: 
Awaiting amended plans 
 

 
S05/0821/06/KJC 
 
Date registered: 
16-Jun-2005 
No of days:  158 

Mr & Mrs J  Eatch 
Garage/stable block, raise boundary wall and extensions to 
dwelling 
The Old Rectory, Rectory Lane, Barrowby 
Reason for non-determination: 
Awaiting amended plans 
 

 
S05/1246/06/KJC 
 
Date registered: 
12-Sep-2005 
No of days:  70 

Mr & Mrs A  Wright 
Erection of dwelling 
11, Wong Gardens, Barrowby 
Reason for non-determination: 
Awaiting withdrawal 
 

 
S05/LB/6413/06/KJC 
 
Date registered: 
23-May-2005 
No of days:  182 

Mr & Mrs J  Eatch 
First floor extension, extension to conservatory and utility 
room 
The Old Rectory, Rectory Lane, Barrowby 
Reason for non-determination: 
Awaiting amended plans 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 



Table 1 / Page 4 

 
SOUTH  RURAL 
 
 
S02/1522/68/KJC 
 
Date registered: 
15-Nov-2002 
No of days:  1102 

A G  White 
Change of use to B1, B2 and B8 
The Fox Garage, A1 North, South Witham 
Reason for non-determination: 
Awaiting details of traffic generation 
 

 
S04/1509/75/IVW 
 
Date registered: 
04-Oct-2004 
No of days:  413 

The Proprietor 
Day nursery 
Adj & R/o Pumping Station, Barholm Road, Tallington, 
Stamford 
Reason for non-determination: 
Awaiting further information 
 

 
S04/1819/76/KJC 
 
Date registered: 
07-Dec-2004 
No of days:  349 

Mr & Mrs G A  Rogers 
Conversion of barns to domestic annexe 
Northorpe Lodge, Wood Lane, Northorpe 
Reason for non-determination: 
Authority to refuse, likely to be withdrawn 
 

 
S05/0641/58/JJ 
 
Date registered: 
10-May-2005 
No of days:  195 

Ashley King Developments 
Erection of two dwellinghouses, three bungalows and 
associated parking 
r/o 16, 18 & 20, Station Road, Morton 
Reason for non-determination: 
Awaiting additional information 
 

 
S05/0751/76/MS 
 
Date registered: 
03-Jun-2005 
No of days:  171 

Mears Motors Limited 
Residential development 
Thurlby Road Garage, Main Road, Thurlby 
Reason for non-determination: 
Chairman and Vice Chairman to approve subject to S106 
agreement 
 

 
S05/0855/23/MS 
 
Date registered: 
22-Jun-2005 
No of days:  152 

Hay Hampers Limited 
Removal of condition 2 from planning permission 
SK23/0631/89 (retention of windows) 
The Barn, Church Street, Corby Glen 
Reason for non-determination: 
Further amendments required 
 

 
S05/1133/16/IVW 
 
Date registered: 
17-Aug-2005 
No of days:  96 

Mr & Mrs   Gillespie 
Erection of indoor swimming pool 
Holywell Hall, Holywell 
Reason for non-determination: 
Further information required and still under consideration 
 

 
 

 



Table 1 / Page 5 

 
S05/1252/58/MS 
 
Date registered: 
13-Sep-2005 
No of days:  69 

Alston Country Homes 
Erection of dwelling (substitution of house type) 
Plot 5, East Lane, Morton 
Reason for non-determination: 
Applicants negotiating re site 
 

 
S05/LB/6452/16/IVW 
 
Date registered: 
17-Aug-2005 
No of days:  96 

Mr & Mrs   Gillespie 
Extension and alteration of listed building 
Holywell Hall, Holywell 
Reason for non-determination: 
Further information requested and still under consideration 
 

 
 
 
SOUTH  URBAN 
 
 
S00/1124/69/IVW 
 
Date registered: 
31-Oct-2000 
No of days:  1847 

F H Gilman & Co 
Business Park 
PT OS 2700, Land north of Uffington Road, Stamford 
Reason for non-determination: 
Chairman/Vice Chairman to approve subject to Archaeological 
Evaluation and S106 agreement 
 

 
S03/0320/56/MS 
 
Date registered: 
16-May-2003 
No of days:  920 

The Robert Doughty Consultancy Ltd 
Industrial development B1, B2 and B8 
OS 3900, 4800, 5300 & PT OS 7200, Northfield Road, Market 
Deeping 
Reason for non-determination: 
Pending Local Development Framework 
 

 
S03/0384/12/MS 
 
Date registered: 
25-Mar-2003 
No of days:  972 

Opico Ltd 
Change of use from light industrial to retail (B1 to A1) 
Opico Factory, South Road, Bourne 
Reason for non-determination: 
Awaiting Retail and Traffic Impact Assessments 
 

 
S03/0580/56/MS 
 
Date registered: 
11-Jun-2003 
No of days:  894 

Messrs R & N  Stanton 
Erection of restaurant and takeaway 
Adjacent The Towngate Inn, Peterborough Road, Market 
Deeping 
Reason for non-determination: 
Awaiting Flood Risk Assessment 
 

 
S03/1206/69/IVW 
 
Date registered: 
05-Sep-2003 
No of days:  808 

Mr S  Haynes 
Erection of garage and verandah 
56, High Street, St. Martins, Stamford 
Reason for non-determination: 
Awaiting amended plan 
 

 

 



Table 1 / Page 6 

 
S03/LB/6086/69/IVW 
 
Date registered: 
05-Sep-2003 
No of days:  808 

Mr S  Haynes 
Extension of listed building (verandah and garage) 
56, High Street, St. Martins, Stamford 
Reason for non-determination: 
Awaiting amended drawings 
 

 
S04/1455/56/KJC 
 
Date registered: 
22-Sep-2004 
No of days:  425 

Holland House Nursing Homes 
Erection of 14 sheltered housing units 
Holland House Residential Home, 35, Church Street, Market 
Deeping 
Reason for non-determination: 
Discussions ongoing - likely to be withdrawn 
 

 
S04/1463/56/MS 
 
Date registered: 
24-Sep-2004 
No of days:  423 

Tesco Stores Ltd 
Extension to superstore 
Tesco Stores Ltd, Godsey Lane, Market Deeping 
Reason for non-determination: 
Chairman and Vice Chairman to approve subject to S106 
 

 
S04/1789/56/MS 
 
Date registered: 
30-Nov-2004 
No of days:  356 

Wilcox Body Trailers 
Factory unit and offices 
Land Adjacent Wilcox Body Systems, Blenheim Way, Market 
Deeping 
Reason for non-determination: 
Chairman and Vice Chairman to approve subject to S106 
agreement 
 

 
S04/LB/6323/12/MS 
 
Date registered: 
30-Nov-2004 
No of days:  356 

Bourne United Charities 
Alteration of listed buidling (block up doorway and window in 
rear elevation) 
Baldocks Mill (Heritage Centre), South Street, Bourne 
Reason for non-determination: 
Awaiting amendments 
 

 
S05/0167/69/IVW 
 
Date registered: 
09-Feb-2005 
No of days:  285 

Mr G  King 
Extension to dwelling 
25, Priory Road, Stamford 
Reason for non-determination: 
Awaiting further details from applicant 
 

 
S05/0183/69/IVW 
 
Date registered: 
10-Feb-2005 
No of days:  284 

Croft Commercial Developments Limited 
Creation of flat 
8, St. Marys Hill, Stamford 
Reason for non-determination: 
Still under consideration following archaeologist's report 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 



Table 1 / Page 7 

 
S05/0878/12/MS 
 
Date registered: 
28-Jun-2005 
No of days:  146 

Stepnell Limited 
Construction of 45 flats for persons requiring elements of care 
and ancillary works 
Johnson Bros Ltd, Manning Road, Bourne 
Reason for non-determination: 
Chairman/Vice Chairman to approve subject to S106 
agreement 
 

 
S05/0890/69/IVW 
 
Date registered: 
30-Jun-2005 
No of days:  144 

Hegarty & Co 
Partial demolition of store, ground floor extensions and 
internal alterations 
10, Ironmonger Street, Stamford 
Reason for non-determination: 
Still under consideration 
 

 
S05/1078/12/MS 
 
Date registered: 
05-Aug-2005 
No of days:  108 

Anglia Regional Co-op Society 
Demolition of existing factory and erection of DIY unit with 
garden centre, 1 no. foodstore and 2no. non food retail units 
with service yard and associated car parking 
Land off, South Road, Bourne 
Reason for non-determination: 
Requested withdrawal to facilitate significant amendments to 
scheme 
 

 
S05/1201/56/MS 
 
Date registered: 
05-Sep-2005 
No of days:  77 

Alston Country Homes Limited 
Conversion of 5 barns to dwellings and construction of 2 
dwellings 
Towngate Farm House, Towngate West, Market Deeping 
Reason for non-determination: 
English Heritage objects - application to be withdrawn 
 

 
S05/1238/12/MS 
 
Date registered: 
09-Sep-2005 
No of days:  73 

B  Corr 
Erection of 3 dwellings, access roads and ancillary works 
Land Adj. & R/o 43/43A, Willoughby Road, Bourne 
Reason for non-determination: 
Amendments to scheme as a result of consultations 
 

 
S05/1254/12/JJ 
 
Date registered: 
14-Sep-2005 
No of days:  68 

Bourne Tractors 
Recladding and reroofing of buildings, installation of door and 
windows and internal alterations 
Lodge Farm Buildings, Spalding Road, North Fen, Bourne 
Reason for non-determination: 
Awaiting additional information 
 

 
S05/LB/6364/69/IVW 
 
Date registered: 
10-Feb-2005 
No of days:  284 

Croft Commercial Developments Limited 
Alteration of listed building 
8, St. Marys Hill, Stamford 
Reason for non-determination: 
Still under consideration following archaeologist's report 
 

 
 

 



Table 1 / Page 8 

 
S05/LB/6435/69/IVW 
 
Date registered: 
30-Jun-2005 
No of days:  144 

Hegarty & Co 
Partial demolition of store, ground floor extensions and 
internal alterations 
10, Ironmonger Street, Stamford 
Reason for non-determination: 
Still under consideration 
 

 
S05/LB/6455/69/IVW 
 
Date registered: 
24-Aug-2005 
No of days:  89 

Mr & Mrs K  McKay 
Alteration of listed building (replacement windows to dormers) 
The Old Salutation, 16, All Saints Street, Stamford 
Reason for non-determination: 
Further details submitted, under consideration 
 

 
S05/LB/6460/69/IVW 
 
Date registered: 
02-Sep-2005 
No of days:  80 

HBS 
Alteration of listed building (construction of access ramp and 
wider toilets) 
Registrars Office, 2, St. Marys Hill, Stamford 
Reason for non-determination: 
Still under consideration (difficulty gaining access) 
 

 
S05/LB/6461/56/MS 
 
Date registered: 
05-Sep-2005 
No of days:  77 

Alston Country Homes Limited 
Conversion of 5 barns to dwellings and construction of 2 
dwellings 
Towngate Farm House, Towngate West, Market Deeping, 
Cambs 
Reason for non-determination: 
English Heritage objects - application to be withdrawn 
 

 
 

 



Table 2 / Page 1 

TABLE 2 
 
 
APPLICATIONS DECIDED UNDER DELEGATED POWERS 
FROM 24 OCTOBER – 11 NOVEMBER 2005 
 
 
S05/0938/54  
Applicant: Physee Limited 
Proposal: Change of use from industrial unit to gymnasium 
Location: UNIT 2, Withambrook Park Industrial Estate, Grantham 
Decision: Refused - 25 October 2005 
 
S05/1004/69  
Applicant: Mr M  Germany 
Proposal: Two storey side extension 
Location: 30, Cromarty Road, Stamford 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 25 October 2005 
 
S05/1044/11  
Applicant: Lord Jamie  Netherthorpe 
Proposal: Formation of dormer window 
Location: Boothby Hall, Main Street, Boothby Pagnell 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 25 October 2005 
 
S05/1051/56  
Applicant: Swallow Homes Retirement Benefit Fund 
Proposal: Erection of 10 industrial units 
Location: Northfields Poultry Farm, Northfields Road, Market Deeping 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 02 November 2005 
 
S05/1081/22  
Applicant: Mr A G  White 
Proposal: Proposed right turn junction & new access 
Location: Sir Isaac Newton Business Park, Part OS 0062, Bourne 

Road, Colsterworth 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 24 October 2005 
 
S05/1083/61  
Applicant: Hardys & Hansons plc 
Proposal: Provision of lighting to car park 
Location: Fox & Hounds, Grantham Road, Old Somerby 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 25 October 2005 
 
S05/1099/41  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs M  Parker 
Proposal: Rear extension to dwelling 
Location: 8, Pond Street, Harlaxton 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 02 November 2005 
 
S05/1106/69  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs R  Mitchell 
Proposal: Two storey side and rear extension 
Location: 5, Caithness Road, Stamford 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 28 October 2005 
 
 
 

 



Table 2 / Page 2 

S05/1123/02  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs D  Elmes 
Proposal: Demolition of existing dwelling and erection of detached 

dwelling 
Location: 10, West View, Ancaster 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 02 November 2005 
 
S05/1148/12  
Applicant: Mr M J  Thurlby 
Proposal: Redevelopment of site to include retail, six apartments and 

bar/restaurant 
Location: 30-32, North Street, Bourne 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 03 November 2005 
 
S05/1154/37  
Applicant: Mrs S  Sinclair & Mr P Russell 
Proposal: Erection of garage 
Location: 78, Long Street, Great Gonerby 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 09 November 2005 
 
S05/1186/25  
Applicant: Mr J E  Gardham 
Proposal: Change of use of barn to dwelling 
Location: R/o 82, Church Street, Deeping St. James 
Decision: Refused - 24 October 2005 
 
S05/1194/58  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs R  Barwell 
Proposal: Side and rear ground floor extensions and open summer 

kitchen 
Location: 1, St. Johns Close, Morton 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 24 October 2005 
 
S05/1196/35  
Applicant: Mr N  McDermott 
Proposal: First floor extension to side 
Location: 10, Oakdale Close, Grantham 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 28 October 2005 
 
S05/1199/69  
Applicant: Topps Tiles plc 
Proposal: Advertisements (2 no illuminated, 5 no non-illuminated) on 

business premises 
Location: Topps Tiles, Stamford Business Park, Stamford 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 26 October 2005 
 
S05/1206/35  
Applicant: Premier Engineering 
Proposal: Erection of 4 dwellings (terraced) 
Location: Land Adjacent To St Johns Ambulance Station, Cambridge 

Street, Grantham 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 31 October 2005 
 
S05/1208/35  
Applicant: 2nd St Wulframs Scouts 
Proposal: Erection of ball-catch fence 
Location: 2nd Grantham (St Wulframs) Scout Group, Broad Street, 

Grantham 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 28 October 2005 

 



Table 2 / Page 3 

 
S05/1209/10  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs   Kelly 
Proposal: Two storey extension and conservatory 
Location: The Old School House, Main Street, Bitchfield 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 24 October 2005 
 
S05/1210/42  
Applicant: Mr M R  Bromige 
Proposal: Domestic workshop and 2 rooflights (rear) 
Location: South Barn, Oasby 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 24 October 2005 
 
S05/1216/25  
Applicant: Susan Valentine (Clerk), Deeping St James Parish Council 
Proposal: Change of use from open space to cemetery burial ground 
Location: Deeping St James Cemetery, Hereward Way, Deeping St. 

James 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 27 October 2005 
 
S05/1219/69  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs J  Ogilvie-Davis 
Proposal: Illuminated signage 
Location: Mi Famiila, Old Barn Passage, St Mary's Street, Stamford 
Decision: Split decision - 31 October 2005 
 
S05/1223/27  
Applicant: Mr J  Goodwin 
Proposal: Conversion of barn to dwelling with extension 
Location: Middle Fen Farm, Fen Road, Dowsby 
Decision: Refused - 24 October 2005 
 
S05/1236/54  
Applicant: Arraquip Ltd 
Proposal: Enclosure of existing gantry crane 
Location: Arraquip, UNIT 1 & 2, Withambrook Park Industrial Estate, 

Grantham 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 24 October 2005 
 
S05/1239/54  
Applicant: Mrs D  Hopkins 
Proposal: Detached pre-fabricated garage 
Location: 27, Wardour Drive, Grantham 
Decision: Withdrawn - 24 October 2005 
 
S05/1240/35  
Applicant: Mr W P  Cooney 
Proposal: Loft conversion with dormer window 
Location: 26, Manthorpe Road, Grantham 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 24 October 2005 
 
S05/1243/12  
Applicant: Bank House Ltd 
Proposal: Conversion and extension of bank premises to two retail 

units 
Location: 6, West Street, Bourne 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 24 October 2005 
 

 



Table 2 / Page 4 

 
S05/1244/12  
Applicant: JEDA/RBS Limited 
Proposal: Office accommodation and storage and extension 
Location: Land south of, Victor Way, Bourne 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 02 November 2005 
 
S05/1247/12  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs C  Young 
Proposal: Extension and garage 
Location: 7, Sycamore Close, Bourne 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 25 October 2005 
 
S05/1248/62  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs J  Williams 
Proposal: Garden room & verandah 
Location: St. Andrews Place, Church Lane, Pickworth 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 24 October 2005 
 
S05/1253/35  
Applicant: Punch Taverns 
Proposal: Window & door alterations to front elevation 
Location: Royal Oak, 27, Market Place, Grantham 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 28 October 2005 
 
S05/1255/12  
Applicant: Bourne Tractors 
Proposal: Fascia signs 
Location: Lodge Farm Buildings, Spalding Road, North Fen, Bourne 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 08 November 2005 
 
S05/1256/68  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs   Freeman 
Proposal: Erection of conservatory 
Location: 2, The Parkside, South Witham 
Decision: Refused - 26 October 2005 
 
S05/1257/12  
Applicant: A  Satkizade 
Proposal: Change of use to hot food takeaway (A5) 
Location: 2, South Street, Bourne 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 27 October 2005 
 
S05/1260/16  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs   Booty 
Proposal: Erection of livery stables 
Location: Park Farm, Careby 
Decision: Refused - 08 November 2005 
 
S05/1261/02  
Applicant: Rochford Homes Ltd 
Proposal: Substitution of house types (5 units) & repositioning of Plots 

7,8 & 9 
Location: Manor Farm, Main Street, Sudbrook 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 24 October 2005 
 
 
 

 



Table 2 / Page 5 

 
S05/1263/12  
Applicant: Mr L S  Hawkins 
Proposal: demolish existing building and erect bungalow and 

detached garage 
Location: Land Adjacent To Kennels, Meadow Drove, Dyke 
Decision: Refused - 02 November 2005 
 
S05/1264/08  
Applicant: English Country Gardens (UK) Ltd 
Proposal: Change of use residential to retail use connected with 

existing garden centre 
Location: The Gardeners Cottage, Belton Garden Centre, Belton 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 03 November 2005 
 
S05/1265/69  
Applicant: Woolworth plc 
Proposal: 2 non-illuminated fascia signs and 1 projecting sign 
Location: Woolworths Plc, 60, High Street, Stamford 
Decision: Split decision - 31 October 2005 
 
S05/1266/34  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs D  Smart 
Proposal: Erection of car port 
Location: North End House, North End, Fulbeck 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 02 November 2005 
 
S05/1268/69  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs J  Smith 
Proposal: Breakfast room extension 
Location: 1, Bentley Street, Stamford 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 02 November 2005 
 
S05/1271/12  
Applicant: Copland Building Contractors 
Proposal: Erection of detached dwelling with integral garage 
Location: Land Adjacent Manton House, Eastgate, Bourne 
Decision: Withdrawn - 25 October 2005 
 
S05/1272/37  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs   Clements 
Proposal: Erection of porch and conservatory 
Location: 6, Marratts Lane, Great Gonerby 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 24 October 2005 
 
S05/1273/01  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs L  Milne 
Proposal: Change of use of agricultural land to garden 
Location: 12, Park Road, Allington 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 08 November 2005 
 
S05/1275/50  
Applicant: T  Taylor & D Baxter 
Proposal: Conservatory at rear 
Location: 9, Manor Close, Langtoft 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 02 November 2005 
 
 

 



Table 2 / Page 6 

 
S05/1276/67  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs S  Buckingham 
Proposal: Conversion of barn to family annex 
Location: The Old Posthouse, The Square, Skillington 
Decision: Refused - 26 October 2005 
 
S05/1277/12  
Applicant: Offiler Financial Services 
Proposal: Change of use to financial services 
Location: 9, Abbey Road, Bourne 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 03 November 2005 
 
S05/1278/59  
Applicant: Mr R  Rainthorpe 
Proposal: Extension and alterations to dwelling and erection of garage 

and stable block 
Location: Beech Cottage, Main Street, Normanton 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 08 November 2005 
 
S05/1279/32  
Applicant: Mr David  Shiels 
Proposal: Single storey rear extension 
Location: Canterbury House, Chapel Lane, Folkingham 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 10 November 2005 
 
S05/1284/25  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs G  Taylor 
Proposal: Extension to rear 
Location: 156, Eastgate, Deeping St. James 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 03 November 2005 
 
S05/1285/78  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs M  Crook 
Proposal: Garage loft conversion, entrance porch and glazed loft 

hatch 
Location: Ashleigh House, Manners Close, Uffington 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 09 November 2005 
 
S05/1286/68  
Applicant: Mr C  White 
Proposal: Extension 
Location: 3, Wellfield Close, South Witham 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 08 November 2005 
 
S05/1290/35  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs R  Watson 
Proposal: Extension to dwelling 
Location: 30, Stuart Street, Grantham 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 11 November 2005 
 
S05/1292/35  
Applicant: Mr G  Churchill 
Proposal: Erection of rear conservatory 
Location: 161, Denton Avenue, Grantham 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 07 November 2005 
 
 

 



Table 2 / Page 7 

 
S05/1293/35  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs S  Ferguson 
Proposal: Extension and alterations 
Location: 26, Saltersford Road, Grantham 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 10 November 2005 
 
S05/1295/54  
Applicant: Mr B  Watt 
Proposal: Demolition of existing dwelling & erection of replacement 

dwelling 
Location: Hilltop, Harrowby 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 03 November 2005 
 
S05/1296/25  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs K  Green 
Proposal: Side extension to bungalow 
Location: 87, Manor Way, Deeping St. James 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 08 November 2005 
 
S05/1297/69  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs   Steaker 
Proposal: Conservatory at rear 
Location: 71, Exeter Gardens, Stamford 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 08 November 2005 
 
S05/1298/35  
Applicant: Brantano Footwear 
Proposal: Internally illuminated fascia sign 
Location: Unit C, Sankt Augustin Way, Grantham 
Decision: Approved - 25 October 2005 
 
S05/1300/35  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs A  Richardson 
Proposal: Provision of illuminated pole mounted sign 
Location: 23, North Parade, Grantham 
Decision: Approved - 03 November 2005 
 
S05/1304/69  
Applicant: Mark  Want 
Proposal: First floor rear extension to dwelling 
Location: 53, Rutland Road, Stamford 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 02 November 2005 
 
S05/1316/18  
Applicant: Mr N D  Vernon 
Proposal: Painted steel storage container 
Location: Carlton Scroop & Normanton Village Hall, Newark Lane, 

Carlton Scroop 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 09 November 2005 
 
S05/1328/46  
Applicant: K  Blyth 
Proposal: Erection of dwelling 
Location: Land Rear Of Beechers Farm, Hough-on-the-hill 
Decision: Refused - 04 November 2005 
 
 

 



Table 2 / Page 8 

 
S05/1329/35  
Applicant: Ablehomes Ltd 
Proposal: Revised access drive 
Location: Plot 10, Gonerby House, Gonerby Road, Grantham 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 04 November 2005 
 
S05/1371/54  
Applicant: Mr Sanjay  Sivani 
Proposal: Proposed retail & residential development 
Location: Land Adjoining, Lytham Close, Grantham 
Decision: Withdrawn - 25 October 2005 
 
S05/1376/07  
Applicant: PMK Recycling Ltd 
Proposal: Change of use of land as waste recycling centre 
Location: Part OS 5600, Baston Outgang Road, Baston 
Decision: Approved - 03 November 2005 
 
S05/1380/25  
Applicant: Plumview Ltd 
Proposal: Construction of hardstanding, bund and fence 
Location: Deepings Recycling Centre, Station Road, Deeping St. 

James 
Decision: Approved - 04 November 2005 
 
S05/1396/78  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs J  Hartley 
Proposal: Erection of boat store and new access 
Location: The Old Rectory, Greatford Road, Uffington 
Decision: Withdrawn - 25 October 2005 
 
S05/1399/35  
Applicant: Lincolnshire County Council 
Proposal: Two classroom extensions, extend entrance & new hygiene 

suite 
Location: Gonerby Hill Foot CP School, Gonerby Road, Gonerby Hill 

Foot, Grantham 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 08 November 2005 
 
S05/1441/59  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs R J  Dowding 
Proposal: Two storey extention to dwelling and entrance lobby 

detached triple garage and resite stables 
Location: Beechcroft Farm, Main Street, Normanton 
Decision: Withdrawn - 03 November 2005 
 
S05/CA/6445/12  
Applicant: Mr M  Thurlby 
Proposal: Demolition of buildings within the Conservation Area 
Location: 32, North Street, Bourne 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 03 November 2005 
 
S05/CA/6471/35  
Applicant: W P  Cooney 
Proposal: Demolition of garden wall 
Location: 26, Manthorpe Road, Grantham 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 03 November 2005 

 



Table 2 / Page 9 

 
S05/LB/6449/11  
Applicant: Lord Jamie  Netherthorpe 
Proposal: Formation of dormer window, alterations to rainwater goods 

and re-roofing 
Location: Boothby Hall, Main Street, Boothby Pagnell 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 25 October 2005 
 
S05/LB/6454/69  
Applicant: Woolworth plc 
Proposal: 2 non-illuminated fascia signs and 1 projecting sign 
Location: Woolworths Plc, 60, High Street, Stamford 
Decision: Refused - 31 October 2005 
 
S05/LB/6464/69  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs J  Ogilvie-Davis 
Proposal: Alteration of listed building (Illuminated signage) 
Location: Mi Famiila, Old Barn Passage, St Mary's Street, Stamford 
Decision: Refused - 31 October 2005 
 
S05/LB/6467/12  
Applicant: Bank House Ltd 
Proposal: Alterations and extension to listed building 
Location: 6, West Street, Bourne 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 24 October 2005 
 
S05/LB/6468/69  
Applicant: Mr M  Harrod 
Proposal: Alteration of listed building 
Location: The Vale House, 2, Kings Mill Lane, Stamford 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 26 October 2005 
 
S05/LB/6469/55  
Applicant: Mr P Lefrenais, Kean Homes 
Proposal: Removal of garden wall (curtilage structure) 
Location: Crosburn House, Main Street, Long Bennington 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 03 November 2005 
 
S05/LD/1267/48  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs   Willbond 
Proposal: Extension to dwelling 
Location: Cherry Holt, 3, Irnham Park, Irnham 
Decision: Lawful Development - 03 November 2005 
 

 



 
- 1 - 

TABLE 3 
 
PLANNING APPEALS 2005/2006  (excluding Enforcements) 
Update for October 
 
 
NO OF APPEALS DETERMINED  (based on Decision Date) 

 
 2000/01 2001/02 2002/03 2003/04 2004/05 2005/06 
LODGED 43 61 48 49 107 36 
DISMISSED 28 34½ 26½ 22½ 65½ 37 
ALLOWED 12 20 21 9½ 21½ 12 
WITHDRAWN 3 2 2 1 3 4 
OUTSTANDING 9 20 20 37 53 36 

 
 
 
APPEAL DECISIONS LAST MONTH 
 
 
 
S04/0549/74   MH 
Mrs E  Wilkinson & Mrs L Garrett 
Erection of detached dwelling 
Land Adjacent West Lodge, Syston 
 

 
Informal Hearing 

 
Start Date 

06-Sep-2004 
 

Date of H / I 
12-Oct-2005 

 

 
Appeal dismissed 

 
28-Oct-2005 

 
 
S04/0903/12   KJC 
Bourne Tractors 
Residential development 
47, Main Road, Dyke 
 

 
Informal Hearing 

 
Start Date 

07-Oct-2004 
 

Date of H / I 
19-Oct-2005 

 

 
Appeal allowed 

 
27-Oct-2005 

 
 
S05/0086/37   MH 
Mr & Mrs P  Jennings 
Extension to dwelling 
2a, Pond Street, Great Gonerby 
 

 
Written Evidence

 
Start Date 

19-Jul-2005 
 

Date of H / I 
N/A 

 

 
Appeal dismissed 

 
18-Oct-2005 

 
 
S05/0356/57   MH 
Alphateck Ltd 
Demolition of dwelling & residential development 
(4) 
The Paddock, Bridge Street, Marston 
 

 
Written Evidence

 
Start Date 

05-Aug-2005 
 

Date of H / I 
N/A 

 

 
Appeal dismissed 

 
25-Oct-2005 

 
 
S05/0451/20   MH 
Mr R  Pledge 
Erection of two dwellings 
The Red Lion, High Street, Caythorpe 
 

 
Written Evidence

 
Start Date 

20-Jun-2005 
 

Date of H / I 
N/A 

 

 
Appeal allowed 
with conditions 

 
19-Oct-2005 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
- 2 - 

OUTSTANDING APPEALS 
 
 
 
 
S02/0154/35   RWE 
Buckminster Estate & Jenkinson Trust 
Residential development, local centre, school, 
open space, roads and bridge 
Poplar Farm, Barrowby Road, Grantham 
 

 
Public Inquiry 

 
Start Date 

29-Sep-2003 
 

Date of H / I 
08-Nov-2005 

 

 
 

 
 
S03/1348/35   PJM 
Ryan Michaels Limited 
Internally illuminated fascia and projecting 
signage 
77-78, Westgate, Grantham 
 

 
Written Evidence

 
Start Date 

04-Mar-2004 
 

Date of H / I 
N/A 

 

 
 

 
 
S03/1744/35   MH 
Myertor Ltd 
Residential development 
R/o 21-43, North Parade, Grantham 
 

 
Informal Hearing 

 
Start Date 

07-Oct-2004 
 

Date of H / I 
08-Nov-2005 

 

 
 

 
 
S03/LB/6110/35   PJM 
Ryan Michaels Ltd 
Fascia and projecting sign 
77-78, Westgate, Grantham 
 

 
Written Evidence

 
Start Date 

10-Mar-2004 
 

Date of H / I 
N/A 

 

 
 

 
 
S04/0499/12   PB 
C F D Ltd 
Residential development (51) 
The Croft, North Road, Bourne 
 

 
Public Inquiry 

 
Start Date 

08-Nov-2004 
 

Date of H / I 
01-Jun-2005 

 

 
 

 
 
S04/1003/49   MH 
Mr & Mrs R E  Flatters 
Erection of 2 dwellings (renewal) 
R/o Ladyhayes, Aslackby Road, Kirkby 
Underwood 
 

 
Informal Hearing 

 
Start Date 

21-Dec-2004 
 

Date of H / I 
10-Jan-2006 

 

 
 

 
 
S04/1040/07   KJC 
Mr L  Lewis 
Residential development 
R/o 63 & 69 Main Street, Baston 
 

 
Informal Hearing 

 
Start Date 

24-Dec-2004 
 

Date of H / I 
11-Jan-2006 

 

 
 

 
 
S04/1241/69   IVW 
Mr & Mrs   McNamara 
Single storey rear extension and detached 
outbuilding and minor internal alterations 
4, Water Street, Stamford 
 

 
Informal Hearing 

 
Start Date 

03-Mar-2005 
 

Date of H / I 
 

 
 

 



 
- 3 - 

 
 
S04/1731/31   MH 
Mr & Mrs P  Johnson 
Demolition of existing buildings and erection of 
five dwellings 
Manor Farm, Main Street, Fenton 
 

 
Informal Hearing 

 
Start Date 

22-Mar-2005 
 

Date of H / I 
 

 
 

 
 
S04/1792/03   EAB 
H & S Design Build & Mr M Dodds 
Removal of Conditions 4 & 6 
Part OS 0035, Aveland Way, Aslackby 
 

 
Written Evidence

 
Start Date 

04-Jul-2005 
 

Date of H / I 
N/A 

 

 
 

 
 
S04/1864/02   JT 
Mr A  Blankley 
Erection of dwelling 
Pt OS 1953, Land West Of Pottergate Road, 
Ancaster 
 

 
Written Evidence

 
Start Date 

06-Jul-2005 
 

Date of H / I 
N/A 

 

 
 

 
 
S04/LB/6267/69   IVW 
Mr & Mrs   McNamara 
Alterations and extension to listed building 
4, Water Street, Stamford 
 

 
Informal Hearing 

 
Start Date 

03-Mar-2005 
 

Date of H / I 
 

 
 

 
 
S04/LB/6328/02   JT 
Mr & Mrs N  Sansom 
Erection of garage within curtilage of listed 
building 
The Vicarage, Ermine Street, Ancaster 
 

 
Written Evidence

 
Start Date 

05-Aug-2005 
 

Date of H / I 
N/A 

 

 
 

 
 
S05/0016/11   EAB 
Mr N  Dodson 
Erection of three dwellings and alterations to 
existing access 
Sunningdale, Main Street, Boothby Pagnell 
 

 
Written Evidence

 
Start Date 

09-Aug-2005 
 

Date of H / I 
N/A 

 

 
 

 
 
S05/0027/57   KJC 
Mr & Mrs   Bartlett 
Erection of dwelling and integral garage 
R/o Barthorne House, Toll Bar Road, Marston 
 

 
Written Evidence

 
Start Date 

06-Sep-2005 
 

Date of H / I 
N/A 

 

 
 

 
 
S05/0088/54   KJC 
Mr & Mrs R  Palframan 
Use of annexe as an independent dwelling 
The Old Forge, Hall Lane, Harrowby 
 

 
Written Evidence

 
Start Date 

24-Aug-2005 
 

Date of H / I 
N/A 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 



 
- 4 - 

 
 
S05/0144/12   JJ 
R P  Markley 
Residential development (24) 
Traditional Ironware, Cherry Holt Road, Bourne 
 

 
Informal Hearing 

 
Start Date 

25-Aug-2005 
 

Date of H / I 
 

 
 

 
 
S05/0154/45   KJC 
D G  Pearson 
Change of use of land to car boot sales (March to 
October) 
Adj. Grange Farm, Hougham 
 

 
Written Evidence

 
Start Date 

23-Sep-2005 
 

Date of H / I 
N/A 

 

 
 

 
 
S05/0354/55   MH 
Ablehomes Ltd 
Erection of five bungalows 
R/o Farbrooke, Main Road, Long Bennington 
 

 
Public Inquiry 

 
Start Date 

09-Aug-2005 
 

Date of H / I 
 

 
 

 
 
S05/0359/33   KJC 
Ablehomes Ltd 
Erection of two detached dwellings 
The Nurseries, Tow Lane, Foston 
 

 
Written Evidence

 
Start Date 

22-Aug-2005 
 

Date of H / I 
N/A 

 

 
 

 
 
S05/0360/22   MH 
Belvoir Ridge Ltd 
Residential development, retail, offices & nursery 
Colsterworth Industrial Estate, Colsterworth 
 

 
Public Inquiry 

 
Start Date 

30-Aug-2005 
 

Date of H / I 
 

 
 

 
 
S05/0393/46   MH 
Carsandra Ltd 
Change of use of land to leisure (fishing) 
Land Off, Hough Road, Brandon 
 

 
Written Evidence

 
Start Date 

26-Sep-2005 
 

Date of H / I 
N/A 

 

 
 

 
 
S05/0415/69   IVW 
Central Leisure 
Installation of rooflights and windows to roof of 
flats 
Former Nightclub Site, Chapel Yard, North Street, 
Stamford 
 

 
Written Evidence

 
Start Date 

10-Oct-2005 
 

Date of H / I 
N/A 

 

 
 

 
 
S05/0427/35   KJC 
Mr A  Finney 
Erection of dwelling (outline) 
165, Manthorpe Road, Grantham 
 

 
Written Evidence

 
Start Date 

10-Nov-2005 
 

Date of H / I 
N/A 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
- 5 - 

 
 
S05/0436/55   KJC 
Mrs A E  Ward 
Demolish existing dwelling and erect five 
dwellings and widen access 
Land At 21, Great North Road, Long Bennington 
 

 
Written Evidence

 
Start Date 

01-Jul-2005 
 

Date of H / I 
N/A 

 

 
 

 
 
S05/0446/35   SLM 
Mr W  Phelps 
Retention of fence to front of property 
94, Harrowby Lane, Grantham 
 

 
Written Evidence

 
Start Date 

11-Oct-2005 
 

Date of H / I 
N/A 

 

 
 

 
 
S05/0554/57   MH 
J R  Thorold 
Provision of access track (gravel) 
Marston Hall, School Lane, Marston 
 

 
Written Evidence

 
Start Date 

19-Oct-2005 
 

Date of H / I 
N/A 

 

 
 

 
 
S05/0640/76   PJM 
Michael  Chalmers 
Erection of double garage 
26, The Green, Thurlby 
 

 
Written Evidence

 
Start Date 

25-Oct-2005 
 

Date of H / I 
N/A 

 

 
 

 
 
S05/0685/69   IVW 
Mr J  Steward 
Construction of 8 no garages and extension of 
hardstanding 
Land r/o, 13-15, Belton Street, Stamford 
 

 
Written Evidence

 
Start Date 

31-Oct-2005 
 

Date of H / I 
N/A 

 

 
 

 
 
S05/0698/56   JJ 
Mr K B  McIntosh 
Erection of four dwellings 
18, Towngate East, Market Deeping 
 

 
Written Evidence

 
Start Date 

09-Aug-2005 
 

Date of H / I 
N/A 

 

 
 

 
 
S05/0803/32   EAB 
Mrs   Raynor 
Erection of dwelling 
1, Low Farm Drive, Folkingham 
 

 
Written Evidence

 
Start Date 

15-Sep-2005 
 

Date of H / I 
N/A 

 

 
 

 
 
S05/0830/69   IVW 
Mr & Mrs I  Cook 
First floor extension and conservatory 
9, Fitzwilliam Road, Stamford 
 

 
Written Evidence

 
Start Date 

23-Aug-2005 
 

Date of H / I 
N/A 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 



 
- 6 - 

 
 
S05/0873/34   KJC 
T Balfe Construction Limited 
Change of use of farmland to storage of materials 
(topsoil etc), machinery and portacabins 
R/o Richmond House, Brant Road, Fulbeck 
 

 
Informal Hearing 

 
Start Date 

02-Nov-2005 
 

Date of H / I 
 

 
 

 
 
S05/0922/55   MH 
Ablehomes Ltd 
Erection of 5 detached dwellings & garages 
accessed of Vicarage Lane 
R/o Farbrooke, Main Road, Long Bennington 
 

 
Public Inquiry 

 
Start Date 

21-Oct-2005 
 

Date of H / I 
 

 
 

 
 
S05/0932/55   MH 
Ablehomes Ltd 
Erection of 5 detached dwellings & garages 
accessed of Vicarage Lane 
R/o Farbrooke, Main Road, Long Bennington 
 

 
Public Inquiry 

 
Start Date 

21-Oct-2005 
 

Date of H / I 
 

 
 

 
 
S05/1071/35   MH 
Ablehomes Ltd 
Substitution of house types 
Plots 8 & 10, Gonerby House, Gonerby Road, 
Grantham 
 

 
Written Evidence

 
Start Date 

13-Oct-2005 
 

Date of H / I 
N/A 

 

 
 

 
 
S05/1109/06   KJC 
Mr & Mrs I  Shaw 
Erection of bungalow 
Land Adjacent The Hawthorns, Rectory Lane, 
Barrowby 
 

 
Written Evidence

 
Start Date 

31-Oct-2005 
 

Date of H / I 
N/A 

 

 
 

 
 

 


